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DEPARTMENTS OF TRANSPORTATION, TREAS-
URY AND GENERAL GOVERNMENT, AND RE-
LATED AGENCIES APPROPRIATIONS FOR
FISCAL YEAR 2005

TUESDAY, MARCH 9, 2004

U.S. SENATE,
SUBCOMMITTEE OF THE COMMITTEE ON APPROPRIATIONS,
Washington, DC.

The subcommittee met at 10:01 a.m., in room SD-138, Dirksen
Senate Office Building, Hon. Richard C. Shelby (chairman) pre-
siding.

Present: Senators Shelby, Bennett, Stevens, and Murray.

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY
STATEMENT OF HON. NORMAN Y. MINETA, SECRETARY
OPENING STATEMENT OF SENATOR RICHARD C. SHELBY

S‘)enator SHELBY. Good morning. The committee will come to
order.

This is the first hearing of the Transportation, Treasury Sub-
committee for the year, fiscal year 2005. Today we welcome a fa-
miliar face, Secretary Norman Mineta, back to this subcommittee.
Mr. Secretary, welcome. We are pleased to have you with us today
to discuss the Department’s budget for the upcoming fiscal year
and to hear your report on progress towards your goals for the De-
partment of Transportation (DOT).

I believe it is only fitting that we begin our hearings with an
overview of the budgetary and management challenges facing the
Department of Transportation. Clearly the budget pressures faced
by the administration and the Congress are reflected in this budg-
et. Secretary Mineta, I looked through the budget submission for
good news and I found myself at the end of the story with little
to cheer about, as I am sure you have.

I want to applaud you though for not proposing any new user
fees in this year’s request that affect the budget. With our economy
struggling to recover, I believe that now would be the worst time
to increase the burden on transportation users or on the economy
through the imposition of new transportation taxes. Our goal
should be to do more with less and to relieve unnecessary impedi-
ments to efficiency in the transportation system. This budget pro-
vides the opportunity to explore how to do more with less.

o))



2

I also want to commend you, Mr. Secretary, for the request for
highway spending. While it is not as high as I hoped for, I am
pleased that the budget abandons the RABA mechanism that
would have generated a much lower amount of highway investment
number for fiscal years 2004 and 2005. While the highway request
is relatively flat, I want my colleagues to realize that it could have
been much, much worse if the administration had blindly followed
the previous authorization’s flawed budget mechanism. Mr. Sec-
retary, you are to be applauded for not embracing that folly.

As important as any of the shortcomings in this request, I am
concerned with the National Highway Traffic Safety Administra-
tion’s (NHTSA) request as it relates to anti-impaired driving ef-
forts. I am saddened to note that alcohol-related deaths were up in
2002. NHTSA has made great strides over the last couple of years
to improve seatbelt usage rates but this is something that I think
we must do better.

I am also concerned about the lack of progress on the Amtrak
fair bid concept for State-supported trains included in the fiscal
year 2004 appropriations measure. I have been told that several
States have contacted the Federal Railroad Administration for
guidance on implementation of the language and nothing has been
forthcoming.

Mr. Secretary, given the request for Amtrak for this coming year
and its abysmal performance over the past 20 years, I would think
this language would be an opportunity for the Department to take
a positive step for people who want to ride trains and for the Amer-
ican taxpayer. I would also like to hear your thoughts on when the
Department will move forward on this important initiative and
would welcome your thoughts on what we should be doing to stop
the financial bleeding at Amtrak.

As predictable as the request for Amtrak may have been, Mr.
Secretary, no area of the Department’s request was more unex-
pected than the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) budget.
Just a couple of months ago, shortly before the submission of your
2005 request to OMB, the administration made an all-out push for
passage of the Vision 100 aviation reauthorization legislation. Now
I look at this budget request and I am surprised to see that the
FAA’s capital account does not reflect the investment levels antici-
pated in that legislation. Your budget, Mr. Secretary, calls for a
13.6 percent reduction, roughly $400 million, to the Federal Avia-
tion Administration’s capital account to update air traffic control
facilities and equipment.

I am concerned not only about the timing of the cut, but also
about its effect. The administration’s budget proposal puts this
committee in the untenable position of having to find an additional
$400 million or being subject to points of order in the Senate. It
is difficult and unseemly to support budgetary protections and
points of order protecting capital investment levels and, at the
same time, to also support the kinds of cuts your budget proposes
for the FAA capital account.

Within the reduced account, I am disappointed that the FAA has
protected troubled acquisition programs and has shelved others
that show real promise. Tighter budgets do not translate to greater
discipline at the FAA. I do not know how the Department expects



3

to develop the Next Generation Air Traffic Control System if the
FAA continues to spare from critical evaluation or from the budget
axe the programs that have unbridled cost growth, schedule delays,
and deferred capabilities.

Mr. Secretary, if the calculus in the F&E submission was to try
to protect the most bloated of programs with the expectation that
Congress would restore funding for the needed new technologies for
efficiency and safety, there may be a few surprised faces at the
FAA’s procurement shop.

Before recognizing Senator Murray, I would like to raise one
more issue. Although only briefly mentioned in budget documents,
your staff has begun briefing the Hill on a major Department reor-
ganization proposal affecting several modes. Clearly, the Depart-
ment needs to improve the coordination of the enforcement of haz-
ardous materials regulations and inspection of hazmat shipments.
In fact, the Inspector General has identified this issue as one of the
top 10 management challenges at the Department.

While improvement is warranted, I think we must be mindful
that previous reorganization efforts have failed. And, I want to reg-
ister my strong reservation about centralizing HAZMAT inspection
and enforcement activities within the Office of the Secretary. The
Office of the Secretary does some things well, such as policy devel-
opment, but the modal administrations are better staffed and
structured to execute operational functions like the HAZMAT pro-
gram. It is highly unusual, and I would argue risky, to establish
an operations function in the Secretary’s office.

Senator Murray.

STATEMENT OF SENATOR PATTY MURRAY

Senator MURRAY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Chairman, I
am pleased that Secretary Mineta can be with our subcommittee
this morning. I understand he testified before the House Transpor-
tation Appropriations Subcommittee just a few days ago and I un-
derstand during that hearing the Secretary explained this budget
reflects the President’s top priorities. If this is true, then it is true
that the President places an extremely low priority on the needs
of our Nation’s transportation system. At a time when congestion
on our Nation’s highways is getting worse and when our road, rail,
airport and air traffic control infrastructure is deteriorating, the
President’s budget for the Transportation Department is effectively
frozen. While there are increases in some select programs, these in-
creases are offset by deep cuts to our efforts to modernize our air
traffic control system and to provide air service to rural America.

Once again the administration is proposing a cut to Amtrak’s
budget that is so deep it will throw the railroad into bankruptcy
if it is enacted. I cannot and will not agree with these priorities
and I hope that my colleagues on this subcommittee will also reject
them. For me this is about our jobs, our economy and our produc-
tivity. If we make the right investments in transportation we will
create millions of jobs here at home, we will make our businesses
and workers more productive, and we will lay the foundation for
our future economic growth.

The Senate has also recognized the importance of transportation
for our economy. Less than a month ago more than three-quarters
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of the United States Senate voted in favor of a surface transpor-
tation authorization bill that placed an appropriate priority on in-
vestment in America’s mobility, America’s productivity, and the
creation of American jobs. That bill called for substantial growth in
our Federal highway, transit, and safety programs. It financed
those increases by closing tax loopholes. The bill not only addressed
America’s broader needs to relieve congestion and improve aging
infrastructure, it also addressed the unique needs of different re-
gions of the country.

For example, I was successful in including an amendment to tri-
ple the amount of funding available for our Nation’s ferry systems.
Ferries are not just a tourist attraction in my State. They are the
way thousands of my constituents get to work each and every day.
The Bush Administration greeted that entire surface transpor-
tation bill with a promise to veto it. Yet when an amendment was
offered on the Senate floor to reduce the size of the bill to a level
that the President said he could accept, that amendment received
only 20 votes.

That vote was less than 4 weeks ago but, boy, things have
changed. Today the Senate is debating a budget resolution that
was reported by the Budget Committee just last week that actually
cuts funding for highways and transit back to the level assumed in
the President’s budget. This budget resolution will allow for $45
billion less in funding over the next 6 years for highways and tran-
sit than the levels the Senate endorsed just last month. That $45
billion reduction translates into more than 2.1 million jobs that will
not be created as a result of the President’s budget policy and this
budget resolution. To my home State of Washington that is a cut
of roughly $807.8 million. That corresponds to a loss of more than
38,000 jobs in Washington State over 6 years.

The President’s cut will have a significant impact on every State.
I hope my colleagues will reflect on that fact before they vote to
pass this budget resolution. This budget negates every statement
that we made a month ago about the importance of highway con-
struction, new transit systems, congestion mitigation, and job cre-
ation. Mr. Chairman, this is hardly the first time that an adminis-
tration has threatened to veto a highway bill because it is too
large. In fact veto threats have been issued against each of the last
three highway bills over last 18 years. But this may be the first
time that a Congress has started to show signs of giving in to ob-
jections from the executive branch.

We need to pass a 6-year surface transportation bill that invests
in America and America’s workers in a meaningful way. We should
not succumb to the view that investment in a mission to Mars is
more important than investments in our country and in our own
people. No one made this point better than Norman Mineta when
he implored his colleagues to ignore the veto threat of the adminis-
tration of George Herbert Walker Bush and pass the Intermodal
Surface Transportation Efficiency Act.

Mr. Mineta said, and I will quote you, “this legislation comes at
the time when it is desperately needed, both in terms of our infra-
structure and for Nation’s economic health. At a time when the
White House continues to deny the effects of the economic recession
we have before us legislation that will create 2 million jobs over the
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next 6 years. While the people of 1600 Pennsylvania Avenue have
not seen or felt the effects of the recession, Mr. Speaker, you have
only to ask the people of Bethlehem, Pennsylvania if there is a re-
cession, or the people of Chicago, or the people of Lafayette, or the
people of San Jose. They will tell you that our economy is hurting.
They will tell you that America needs this legislation and we need
it now.”

“Mr. Speaker, this legislation will improve how Americans get
from here to there as well as the air we breathe, our quality of life,
and the future of our economy. Mr. Speaker, America’s deserves
nothing less.”

Secretary Mineta, those words are as pertinent and on target
today as they were when you delivered them on the floor of the
House on November 26, 1991. America does deserve nothing less.
We should send the highway and transit bill that the Senate
passed last month to the President’s desk, and I believe that if he
listens to his Transportation Secretary he will sign it.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Before I yield I do want to mention a couple of happy and sur-
prising developments that have taken place within the past week
on this subcommittee family. As you know, our majority clerk sit-
ting to your left, Paul Doerrer, got engaged over the weekend to
Leigha Shaw. We congratulate him. Leigha is a friend to all of us.
She serves on the staff of the companion subcommittee in the
H0ﬁse and I want to congratulate both of them and wish them
well.

PREPARED STATEMENT

And to my right, Peter Rogoff, who has been with the Appropria-
tions Committee for 17 years, I believe 15 years on transportation,
is celebrating his birthday today. I will not share with you which
one, but I do want to say happy birthday to him as well and we
wish both of you the very best.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

[The statement follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF SENATOR PATTY MURRAY

I'm pleased that Secretary Mineta can be with the subcommittee this morning.
He testified before the House Transportation Appropriations Subcommittee just a
few days ago. I understand that during that hearing, the Secretary explained this
budget reflects the President’s top priorities.

If this is true, then it’s clear that the President places an extremely low priority
on the needs of our Nation’s transportation system. At a time when congestion on
our Nation’s highways is getting worse, and when our road, rail, airport and air
traffic control infrastructure is deteriorating, the President’s budget for the trans-
portation department is effectively frozen.

While there are increases in some select programs, these increases are offset by
deep cuts to our efforts to modernize our air traffic control system and to provide
air service to rural America. And once again, the administration is proposing a cut
to Amtrak’s budget that is so deep it will throw the railroad into bankruptcy if it
is enacted.

I cannot and will not agree with these priorities, and I hope that my colleagues
on this subcommittee will also reject them. For me, this is about jobs, our economy
and our productivity. If we make the right investments in transportation we will
create millions of jobs here at home, we’'ll make our businesses and workers more
productive, and we’ll lay the foundation for our future economic growth.

The Senate has also recognized the importance of transportation for our economy.
Less than 1 month ago, more than three-quarters of the United States Senate voted
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in favor of a surface transportation authorization bill that placed an appropriate pri-
ority on investment in America’s mobility, America’s productivity, and the creation
of American jobs. That bill called for substantial growth in our Federal highway,
transit and safety programs. It financed these increases by closing tax loopholes.

The bill not only addressed America’s broader needs to relieve congestion and im-
prove aging infrastructure, it also addressed the unique needs of different regions
of the country. For example, I was successful in including an amendment to triple
the amount of funding available for our Nation’s ferry systems. Ferries are not a
tourist attraction in my State. They are the way thousands of my constituents get
to work each day. The Bush Administration greeted that surface transportation bill
with a promise to veto it.

Yet, when an amendment was offered on the Senate Floor to reduce the size of
the bill to a level that the President said he could accept—that amendment received
only 20 votes. That vote was less than 4 weeks ago, but my, how things have
changed.

Today, the Senate is debating a Budget Resolution that was reported by the Budg-
et Committee just last week and that actually cuts funding for highways and transit
back to the level assumed in the President’s budget. This Budget Resolution will
allow for $45 billion less in funding over the next 6 years for highways and transit
than the levels the Senate endorsed just last month. That $45 billion reduction
translates into more than 2.1 million jobs that will not be created as a result of the
President’s budget policy and this Budget Resolution. For Washington State, that
is a cut of roughly $807.8 million. That corresponds to a loss of more than 38,000
jobs in Washington State over 6 years.

The President’s cut will have a significant impact on every State. I hope my col-
leagues will reflect on that fact before they vote to pass this Budget Resolution. This
budget negates every statement that we made a month ago about the importance
of highway construction, new transit systems, congestion mitigation and job cre-
ation.

Mr. Chairman, this is hardly the first time that an administration has threatened
to veto a highway bill because it is too large. In fact, veto threats have been issued
against each of the last 3 highway bills over the last 18 years. But this may be the
first time that a Congress has started to show signs of giving in to objections from
the Executive Branch. We need to pass a 6-year surface transportation bill that in-
vests in America and America’s workers in a meaningful way. We should not suc-
cumb to the view that investment in a mission to Mars is more important than in-
vestments in our own country and our own people.

No one made this point better than Norman Y. Mineta when he implored his col-
leagues to ignore the veto threat of the administration of George Herbert Walker
Bush and pass the Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act. Chairman Mi-
neta said:

“[t]his legislation comes at a time when it is desperately needed—both in terms
of our infrastructure, and for our Nation’s economic health. At a time when the
White House continues to deny the effects of the economic recession, we have before
us legislation that will create two million jobs over the next 6 years. And while the
people of 1600 Pennsylvania Avenue haven’t seen or felt the effects of the recession,
Mr. Speaker, you have only to ask the people of Bethlehem, PA, if there is a reces-
sion. Or the people of Chicago. Or the people of Lafayette, LA. Or the people of San
Jose, CA. They will tell you that our economy is hurting. They will tell you that
America needs this legislation, and we need it now. Mr. Speaker, this legislation
will improve how Americans get from here to there, as well as the air we breathe,
our quality of life, and the future of our economy. Mr. Speaker, America deserves
nothing less.”

Secretary Mineta, these words are as pertinent and on target today as they were
when you delivered them on the Floor of the House on November 26, 1991.

America does deserve nothing less. We should send the highway and transit bill
that the Senate passed last month to the President’s desk. I believe that, if he lis-
tens to his Transportation Secretary, he will sign it. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Senator SHELBY. Thank you, Senator Murray.
Senator Bennett.
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STATEMENT OF SENATOR ROBERT F. BENNETT

Senator BENNETT. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. With
that announcement I think we can expect some late night con-
ferences between the House and the Senate.

Mr. Secretary, let me welcome you here and publicly thank you
for the continued support that has come from the Department of
Transportation for transportation concerns in Utah. We are par-
ticularly pleased with the support and assistance we received from
the Federal Transit Administration. Administrator Jenna Dorn and
her staff have always been responsive and I would be remiss if I
did not publicly acknowledge that here and in a forum directly with
you. We think we have a model program going in the transit sys-
tem along the Wasatch Front has proven to be very successful, ex-
ceeded all expectations and projections as to ridership and we are
enormously proud of it. But we recognize that if we had not had
the kind of support and responsive reaction that has come from Ad-
ministrator Dorn we would not be where we are. So in a time when
people are beating other people up on all kinds of issues, I want
to have the record show how grateful we are for the work that you
have done.

We do have an issue which I will deal with in some detail per-
haps during the question period. In the wide open spaces of the
West, particularly following 9/11, we have had a shift in air trans-
portation away from what people call the main line carriers into
the regional carriers, and a regional carrier that is very successful
in Utah, SkyWest in particular, has added some new jets and some
new routes. The economics of what happened after 9/11 has dic-
tated this.

But it has created a problem in that DOT and FAA regulations
regarding the transportation of medical specimens for diagnosis
has hit us because the regional carrier is not designated to handle
these specimens as much as the trunk carriers are, and with the
University of Utah Medical Center serving the entire region, not
just the State of Utah, we have to get some of those diagnostic
specimens to the University of Utah. They would be transferred to
regional carrier flights rather than the trunk line flights before.
This is an issue that we have just found out about. I am not sure
that you are aware of it either but I wanted to raise it here and
we might get into it at some point.

With that, Mr. Chairman, I will be happy to hear the witness.

Senator SHELBY. Thank you.

Mr. Secretary, your written testimony will be made part of the
record in its entirety. You may proceed as you wish. Welcome again
to the committee.

STATEMENT OF NORMAN Y. MINETA

Secretary MINETA. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman, and
members of the subcommittee. Thank you for this opportunity to
appear before you today to discuss the administration’s fiscal year
2005 budget request for the Department of Transportation. I might
say parenthetically in response to Senator Murray, then is then
and now is now.
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As we begin our discussion, I want to thank the members of the
subcommittee for your support of the work of the Department of
Transportation. I am confident that together we will continue to
build a strong economy by providing a safer, simpler, and smarter
transportation system for our great Nation. Let us turn now to the
budget specifics.

President Bush is requesting $58.7 billion in total budgetary re-
sources for the Department of Transportation. As you are very well
aware, last year we sent the President’s proposal for reauthorizing
our surface transportation programs for the next year to the Con-
gress. This legislation, the Safe, Accountable, Flexible and Efficient
Transportation Equity Act, or SAFETEA, is a responsible plan. It
supports the economy through record investments in our highway
and transit and safety programs without raising gasoline taxes,
without increasing the Federal deficit, and without taking money
from other important programs. So I look forward to working with
the Congress on enactment of the President’s 2005 budget for high-
way, safety, and transit programs. While it does not fall under the
jurisdiction of this committee, I do want to underscore the need for
swift action on this pending SAFETEA proposal by the Congress.

FUNDING FOR SURFACE TRANSPORTATION

The 2005 budget reaffirms the President’s commitment to
SAFETEA by providing a total of $256 billion over the 6-year life
of the bill up from the $247 billion in the original proposal. For
highway and transit programs, the budget would continue the re-
cently enacted 2004 funding level, and within this level we are in-
creasing funding for transit new starts. These new start projects
will carry over 243 million passengers annually and they will save
over 121 million hours in travel time and significantly improve air
quality and mobility in America.

The budget specifically designates more than $14 billion for
transportation safety with increases in annual funding for safety
initiatives in both the National Highway Traffic Safety Administra-
tion, NHTSA, and the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administra-
tion, FMCSA. Today, travel on America’s highway is safer than in
recent memory. Statistics show that 75 percent of all Americans
are using their safety belts, the highest level in our Nation’s his-
tory. We are proud of this progress and will continue the Depart-
ment’s aggressive efforts to save lives and to reduce the more than
$23({1 billion that the economy loses each year because of traffic
crashes.

FUNDING FOR RAILROADS AND AMTRAK

For railroads, the President’s 2005 budget includes $188 million
for the Federal Railroad Administration to support enhanced track
inspection and research activities. The President’s Amtrak reform
legislation, the Passenger Rail Investment Reform Act, is also
pending before the Congress. The 2005 budget requests $900 mil-
lion for Amtrak in 2005 with the potential for an increase to $1.4
billion in the years 2006 through 2009 if the Administration’s man-
agement and financial reforms are enacted. Now these reforms are
critical if we are to justify further spending of taxpayer dollars on
Amtrak service.
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FUNDING FOR THE FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION

The President’s 2005 budget for the Federal Aviation Adminis-
tration provides $14 billion in overall funding. We recognize that
air travel has become a cornerstone of our transportation system
in the more than 100 years since the Wright brothers’ first flight.
While holding the line on Federal spending, the President’s budget
makes a modern and efficient air transportation system a key pri-
ority. Let me assure you that we are making the necessary invest-
ments to keep America flying safely and smoothly.

Our plans include continued near-term investments in aviation
systems and technology to avoid gridlock in the skies and to im-
prove air safety. At the same time we support the design of the
next generation air transportation system to secure America’s place
as a global leader in aviation’s second century. We are constantly
considering new and better ways to make sure that transportation
supports the Nation’s growing economy. One option that we are ex-
ploring would enable the Maritime Administration and the Law-
rence Seaway Development Corporation to expand capacity to use
our ports and waterways to move commercial freight. Giving busi-
nesses reliable and affordable options for moving commercial goods
has the potential to lessen truck traffic on our highways.

Transportation research plays a vital role in developing transpor-
tation solutions. That is why I have asked our staff to study reorga-
nizing the research programs, hazardous materials oversight, and
pipeline safety within the Department. I believe that there are
ways to strengthen and improve our work in all of these important
areas and you will be hearing more from us on these plans.

Finally, I want to close by underscoring my continued commit-
ment to the President’s management agenda initiative. The Depart-
ment of Transportation has made significant improvements in all
management areas. Consequently, we are delivering results for the
American people, helping the President build a strong economy
through a strong transportation system. There is still much to be
done, but I am confident that we are on the right path.

PREPARED STATEMENT

I have touched on only a few key highlights and you will find ad-
ditional details within my full written statement submitted to the
committee as well in our Budget in Brief, which all of you have re-
ceived. It is this multicolored pamphlet. At this time, Mr. Chair-
man, I would be more than happy to answer your questions.

[The statement follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF NORMAN Y. MINETA

Mr. Chairman, Members of the subcommittee, thank you for the opportunity to
appear before you today to discuss the administration’s fiscal year 2005 budget re-
quest for the Department of Transportation. President Bush is requesting $58.7 bil-
lion in total budgetary resources for transportation programs—nearly the same as
the fiscal year 2004 enacted level. I am particularly pleased that within this total
funding level more than $14 billion will support transportation safety projects—my
top priority.

Today, travel on America’s highways is safer than in recent memory. Statistics
show that 79 percent of all Americans are using their safety belts—the highest level
in the Nation’s history. We are proud of this progress and of the Department of
Transportation’s role in encouraging safety belt use. Yet sadly, more than 40,000
people still die in traffic crashes each year. Many die needlessly just because they
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failed to “buckle-up”. This is a tragic statistic that affects all of us and one that both
the President and I have pledged to address. We are committed to reducing traffic
fatalities. The President’s fiscal year 2005 budget request acknowledges this priority
and includes annual funding increases for our important safety programs.

Over the past year, the Department of Transportation provided to the Congress
legislative proposals to reauthorize our Nation’s surface, aviation, and intercity-pas-
senger rail programs. As a result, the “Vision 100—Century of Aviation Reauthor-
ization Act” was passed providing the Federal Aviation Administration with a blue-
print from which to guide its work over the next 4 years.

The fiscal year 2005 President’s budget reflects the administration’s commitment
to aviation and the key role it plays in keeping America moving. On December 17,
2003, we celebrated the 100-year anniversary of the Wright Brothers’ first flight.
Today, air travel has become a cornerstone of our transportation system. Continued
investment in aviation systems and technology is critical to ensuring the reliability
of air travel. The recent passage of the “Vision 100” which authorizes aviation pro-
grams for the next 4 years, includes more than $60 billion in Federal resources—
a 31 percent increase above previous authorization levels for aviation.

The fiscal year 2005 President’s budget request is $14 billion for the Federal Avia-
tion Administration (FAA). The fiscal year 2005 request will enable the agency to
continue to fund the level of service it provides today, while ensuring that critical
capital investments stay on track. In addition, “Vision 100” will result in hundreds
of thousands of additional jobs in the aviation industry over the 4-year life of the
bill while at the same time providing a plan for guiding FAA’s programs in the fu-
ture.

Although we have new aviation reauthorization, work continues to provide reau-
thorization legislation for our surface programs, and long-term legislative solutions
have not been completed to date. The recently enacted surface transportation exten-
sion bill is an interim step that falls short of addressing the long-term needs of
these programs. We welcome the opportunity to work with the Congress to complete
a 6-year reauthorization bill that meets the administration’s principles recently out-
lined in a letter Treasury Secretary Snow and I sent to the Senate Majority Leader
and that will provide the resources and planning horizon to keep our surface trans-
portation programs moving forward.

Enactment of the administration’s surface transportation reauthorization pro-
posal—the “Safe, Accountable, Flexible, and Efficient Transportation Equity Act”, or
“SAFETEA” would accomplish this goal. Last May, the President proposed
“SAFETEA”—the largest investment in history for America’s surface transportation
programs. The President’s fiscal year 2005 budget reaffirms the principles outlined
in “SAFETEA” while amending our proposal to include a total of $256 billion over
the 6-year life of the bill—an additional $8.6 billion more than the $247 billion in
our original “SAFETEA” funding request—and a 21 percent increase over the fund-
ing included in the Transportation Equity Act for the 21st Century (TEA21). Much
of this investment will be used to provide improvements on our roads and highways
which will reduce traffic congestion.

Our revised proposal would continue the funding levels for the Federal Highway
Administration and the Federal Transit Administration enacted in fiscal year 2004
for each year 2005 through 2009. Moreover, the fiscal year 2005 President’s budget
request includes annual increases beginning in 2005 through 2009 for both the Na-
tional Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA) and the Federal Motor Car-
rier Safety Administration (FMCSA) to ensure that improvements in safety are en-
hanced.

Our fiscal year 2005 budget proposal accomplishes the administration’s safety,
mobility, and congestion relief goals by providing a historic level of surface transpor-
tation spending without raising taxes. Instead, the administration’s request relies
on spending resources available in the Highway Trust Fund while ensuring that a
cash balance of approximately $5 billion is maintained throughout the authorization
period. Further, the President’s request would redirect the resources from the 2%
cents per gallon levied on gasohol, and currently deposited in the General Fund, to
the Highway Trust fund. This redirection will increase annual receipts to the High-
way Trust Fund by over $700 million per year—a change that, if enacted, will pro-
vide the resources needed to support the proposed annual funding increases for our
safety programs.

“SAFETEA” provides a plan that will enable us to reach our goals, while pro-
viding the vision necessary to guide our surface transportation programs in a fis-
cally responsible manner. I urge the Congress to act quickly to pass “SAFETEA”
and the fiscal year 2005 President’s budget request for our surface transportation
programs. Every day we delay is a missed opportunity to benefit America.
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Although highway, transit and highway safety programs play a major role in sur-
face transportation, we also rely on railroads to move people and goods across our
country. Intercity passenger rail is an essential element of the Nation’s multi-modal
transportation system. Accordingly, last year, in addition to our SAFETEA proposal,
the administration sent to Congress the President’s Passenger Rail Investment Re-
form Act. This proposal would align passenger rail programs with other transpor-
tation modes, under which States work in partnership with the Federal Govern-
ment, in owning, operating, and maintaining transportation facilities, infrastructure
and services. Putting passenger rail on a solid foundation of planning and invest-
ment will give this important mode of transportation the support it needs to grow.
The President’s fiscal year 2005 budget requests $900 million for Amtrak and in-
cludes the potential for an increase to $1.4 billion in each of fiscal years 2006
thro(tilgh 2009—if the administration’s management and financial reforms are en-
acted.

The fiscal year 2005 President’s budget also includes a proposal for funding the
Essential Air Service (EAS) program that would include a limited cost-sharing ar-
rangement with selected communities participating in the program. Currently, the
EAS program subsidizes scheduled air service to communities that received sched-
uled service at the time of deregulation in 1978. Although there have been tremen-
dous changes in the industry since then, the program has remained static. The ad-
ministration believes that requiring a modest contribution from communities bene-
fiting from this program may energize civic officials and business leaders at the
local and State levels to think more creatively about the potential of the program
and about different means to meet the transportation needs of the community.

The President’s fiscal year 2005 budget request will continue to guarantee air
service to the most isolated communities by restructuring the program to require
communities to contribute either 10 or 25 percent of the total subsidy, depending
on their degree of isolation, and to expand service provided to include ground trans-
portation, single-engine, single-pilot operations, air taxi, charter service or regional
service. With these reforms, the Department would keep the most isolated commu-
nities connected to the national air transportation system with a $50 million budget
flfnded entirely from overflight fees. We look forward to working with you on this

an.

Although transportation continues to improve, we still have many challenges be-
fore us. Highway congestion and expected increases in air travel are issues we must
be prepared to address. At the Department of Transportation, we are looking for
new ways to address growing commercial freight transportation needs, consistent
with our freight action plan. The President’s budget includes programs to reduce
bottlenecks in and around seaports and land borders with Canada and Mexico and
to introduce technological innovations for improved freight efficiency and security.
In addition, the Maritime Administration and the Saint Lawrence Seaway Develop-
ment Corporation are advancing programs to expand our capacity to use ports and
waterways to move freight and transport goods efficiently, thereby reducing depend-
ence on our highways to meet growing freight needs.

Over the past year, I have considered the important role that transportation re-
search plays in developing transportation solutions. That is why I have asked our
staff to study reorganizing the research programs, hazardous materials, and pipe-
line oversight within the Department. I believe there are ways to strengthen and
improve our work in all of these important areas. As we continue to study alter-
native approaches, we will work closely with you and our colleagues within the ad-
ministration to ensure that any potential reorganization will continue to serve the
Nation’s needs.

I also want to highlight the fiscal year 2005 President’s budget request for the
new Department of Transportation headquarters building project. In fiscal year
2004, the Congress included $42 million for our new headquarters building in the
General Services Administration’s budget. Our request of $160 million in fiscal year
2005 would fund the next construction phase and the information technology infra-
structure in the building. This would keep the project on track making it possible
for the Department to begin taking occupancy as planned. Your support for this en-
deavor will ensure that the Department of Transportation will have an alternative
site available when our current lease expires in 2006.

In closing, I would like to share with you my continued commitment to the Presi-
dent’s Management Agenda. President Bush has asked all Federal agencies to work
towards improvements in the following five key areas:

—enhanced budget requests that focus on results and performance;

—improved financial management and strengthened financial controls;

—targeted human capital initiatives that ensure our human resources are used

as effectively as possible;
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—use of competitive sourcing as a resource solution; and

—government-wide use of electronic government tools to improve efficiency.

My team at the Department of Transportation is working hard to implement
these initiatives and I am proud to note that we have already made significant
progress towards these goals. I believe we are on the path to success and we are
committed to continuing these improvements as stewards of the American public’s
resources.

Thank you again for the opportunity to testify today. I look forward to working
closely with all of you, and with the entire Congress, as you consider the fiscal year
2005 President’s budget request and I look forward to responding to any questions
you may have.

FUNDING FOR AIR TRAFFIC CONTROLLERS

Senator SHELBY. Thank you, Mr. Secretary.

The budget proposes a $370 million increase for FAA operations,
$141 million more than the authorized amount. FAA is taking mod-
est steps to control costs, but it cannot afford continued increases
in the operations account of 5 percent to 8 percent annually. FAA
salaries continue to increase sharply. We raised this issue last year
when the average controller’s salary was more than $106,000, and
I am told that in the calendar year 2003 some controllers made
more than $200,000. Controllers’ salaries will further increase
when the full 2004 pay increase is implemented.

Mr. Secretary, what steps is the Department taking to get the
FAA’s payroll under control, or how can you do it?

Secretary MINETA. There are two ways that we are doing that.
The first is through the contract negotiations that we have going
on with the separate labor units. The one specifically for NATCA
is one in which we have arrived at an impasse. We have submitted
our letter of impasse to the Congress relating to the contract nego-
tiations that we have going on. Much of that has to do with pay,
because under the program that Congress passed for the FAA, we
have pay and procurement practices that are different from the
regular civil service. One of the things that are incorporated is pay-
for-performance.

One of the things that is involved in the impasse is the whole
issue of multi-units and whether or not—and NATCA’s proposal is
that they want the full pay increase that everyone is getting, plus
1 percent. What we are looking at is not only individual perform-
ance but also whether the units themselves are meeting their per-
formance goals. So we were not able to come to an agreement on
that issue, and that has now been submitted for impasse.

The other method of controlling costs, of course, is the typical
budgetary restraint. After our initial submission to OMB and the
passback, when we get our final amount, we then have to
reprioritize and allocate those financial resources. So to the extent
that we can look at what our pay will be, or what our financial re-
sources will be, we can match those to what we anticipate in pay
increases in the outyears.

FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Senator SHELBY. Mr. Secretary, I would like to discuss the budg-
et request for FTA administrative expenses. People have been con-
cerned about the annual increases for FAA operations for some
time. As we review your budget submission, I note that the Federal
Transit Administration’s administrative expenses are growing at a
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faster rate than FAA’s operations. This would catch anybody’s at-
tention. Why are FTA’s administrative expenses growing so sharp-
ly?

Secretary MINETA. I think one of the areas in which the FTA pro-
gram is growing is transit services, both in urban areas as well as
the increasing amount that is going to rural areas. These services
require thorough reviews, and with the growth of the urban, rural,
and the new starts programs, we are just spending a lot more time
on going through the applications that are submitted to us. Even
though most of these are earmarked programs, we still have to
make sure that the ridership and financial capability of the system
support what they are asking for. It takes a great deal of effort to
go through those applications.

STATE SUPPORT FOR PASSENGER RAIL SERVICE

Senator SHELBY. Mr. Secretary, I mentioned in my opening state-
ment that FRA has not issued guidance to implement the fair bid
procedure for State-supported rail service. The funds that were set
aside in the 2004 appropriations act expire at the end of the year
and I would be disappointed if we let this opportunity to infuse
competition into passenger rail slip away, especially given the in-
terest of several States. When can we expect FRA to move forward
on this initiative?

Secretary MINETA. FRA has been moving forward, Mr. Chair-
man, with Missouri, St. Louis to Kansas City, and they got no out-
side bidders other than Amtrak on that route. There are other
States that have submitted requests or inquiries about the fair bid,
and I am not sure—I am not up to date on where we are on those
States. But we will be utilizing the fair bid process because we
think that that is the right approach.

MOTOR FUEL TAX EVASION

Senator SHELBY. Mr. Secretary, fuel tax evasion is a subject we
get into from time to time. According to the Federal Highway Ad-
ministration, the highway trust fund forgoes approximately $1 bil-
lion annually due to non-payment or fraudulent evasion of motor
fuel taxes. Are you satisfied as the Secretary with the steps taken
by the Internal Revenue Service to identify the scope of the diver-
sion and stop this from happening in the future? In other words,
that is a lot of money that we are missing.

Secretary MINETA. It is a lot of money, and I am not happy with
the level of enforcement on this issue. That is why our SAFETEA
proposal has specific amounts for the Department of Treasury to
enforce the Federal fuel tax, including the coloring of the fuel and
tracing where it is going.

Senator SHELBY. This might be a subject that we can bring up
with the IRS. Senator Murray and I have worked in that area be-
fore and we will take this up with the Internal Revenue Service
too. You would not mind, I am sure.

Secretary MINETA. Not at all. I would be pleased to join in the
conversation.
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IMPAIRED DRIVING

Senator SHELBY. Impaired driving. We are concerned about the
increase in the number of alcohol-related traffic fatalities which
have risen steadily since 1999. To what factors do you attribute
this disturbing trend and how do you assess the Department’s cur-
rent efforts at curbing impaired driving? In other words, how are
you going to reverse the trend?

One last thing. I have a related point. I heard a report on a news
program a couple days ago that said that if a drunk pedestrian
walked in front of an automobile operated by a sober driver and
was killed, the death would be treated as a drunk driving fatality.
I do not understand the logic of that. Could you find out how the
statistics are collected here and explain what has changed? In
other words, how reliable are the statistics? If you are counting a
drunk pedestrian that is killed by a sober driver, something is
wrong. I do not know if that is right, but it would be worth looking
into.

Secretary MINETA. Let me take a look at that and find out, but
it just does not make common sense.

[The information follows:]

Crashes involving a sober driver and a drunk pedestrian are not considered by
NHTSA as DWI (Driving while Intoxicated). Rather, NHTSA considers them “Alco-
hol-Related” crashes. NHTSA’s definition of an Alcohol-Related Crash, in particular
a fatal crash, is a motor vehicle traffic crash in which any of the actively involved
persons (drivers, pedestrians or pedalcyclists) had a Blood Alcohol Concentration
(BAC) of 0.01 g/dl or more (a positive BAC).

Most alcohol-related crashes involve at least one driver with a positive BAC. Some
of these crashes also may involve a pedestrian or bicyclist with a positive BAC.
However, there are also some crashes in each year in which no driver had a positive
BAC but an involved pedestrian or bicyclist had a positive BAC. The data in
NHTSA’s Fatality Analysis Reporting System allows us to distinguish between these

two categories, when analyzing alcohol-related crashes, as depicted in the following
chart:
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Alcohol Related Fatalities in the U.S., 1988-2002

25000

Fatalities

No Driver had Positive BAC but at least one Nonoccupant had Positive BAC
B At least one Driver with Positive BAC (0.01+) in the Crash

Source: National Center for Statistics and Analysis (NCSA) FARS 1998-2001 (Final) and 2002 (ARF) Files

SAFETY BELT LAWS

Secretary MINETA. In terms of the alcohol-related deaths, the 18-
to-34 age group is the largest cause of fatal accidents. That com-
bined with the issue of the seatbelt usage is why we are working
very hard to get States to enact a primary safety belt law. In the
SAFETEA legislation, there are incentives for States that have a
primary safety belt law or a secondary safety belt law and attain
90 percent safety belt use.

There are, frankly, no States that get anywhere close to that
level of safety belt use with a secondary safety belt law. But the
two, alcohol-related deaths and safety belt usage, work hand-in-
hand. Those are two programs that we work at very hard.

OVERSIGHT OF HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS

Senator SHELBY. Mr. Secretary, ineffective management and
oversight have led to significant cost increases, financing problems,
schedule delays and technical or construction difficulties on high-
way construction projects. For example, the cost for the Springfield
interchange in Virginia has increased more than 180 percent from
$241 million to $677 million, in part because State officials initially
excluded basic cost items such as construction management, infla-
tion, preliminary engineering, and even the design.

What can you do or have you done to establish minimum stand-
ards for cost estimates so that basic cost items such as inflation,
construction management, and design will not be excluded from es-
timates of what a highway project will cost? In other words, this
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seems to be lowballing the original cost. How do you analyze this
and project costs to ensure that they are close to what they claim
they will be?

Secretary MINETA. Lowballing, of course, is always a problem
and you try to catch this when you see change orders coming in.
But what has happened more recently is the volatile steel prices.
As I understand it, this has impacted on highway projects. But on
large, what we call mega-projects, we have now assigned project
managers to make sure that from a financial standpoint as well as
scheduling and quality, if it is a 10-sack concrete job then we are
in fact getting 10 sacks of concrete and not getting shortchanged
in terms of the quality that goes into that work. Quality also im-
pacts on the lifespan of that infrastructure. So we now have a spe-
cific project manager on those so-called megaprojects.

Senator SHELBY. Senator Murray, thanks for your indulgence.

FUNDING FOR AIR TRAFFIC CONTROL MODERNIZATION

Senator MURRAY. Mr. Secretary, the only proposed cut in your
budget that is larger than your proposed cut in Amtrak is the $400
million you are proposing in the FAA to modernize our air traffic
control equipment. In your formal opening statement, you take the
time to point out that the President signed the Vision 100 bill
which authorizes more than $60 billion in Federal resources, which
is a 31 percent increase above previous authorizations for the FAA,
yet your actual budget request, rather than honoring the increased
authorizations in that Vision 100 bill, actually cuts investments for
air traffic control modernization by 14 percent next year. When you
look at the Bush Administration’s multi-year budget it says that
you want to cut modernization even lower in 2006. In total for the
4-year life of the Vision 100 bill the Administration plans to
underfund the authorized level of air traffic control modernization
by more than $2 billion.

What has changed since the date that the President signed the
Vision 100 bill and today that has caused you to do such a sudden
reversal when it comes to modernizing our air traffic control equip-
ment?

Secretary MINETA. First of all, we are not doing anything to im-
pact on the modernization. There are programs that we feel, as we
reevaluated the program, needed to, frankly, be shelved and not
move forward at this time. But in terms of the overall next genera-
tion air transportation system, we are not shortchanging improve-
ments in capacity, safety, delays, or better information for air traf-
fic controllers. Whether it be the STARS program or ASDX, the
programs that will improve the system are funded by the 2005
budget and in the outyears as well.

What we are doing is reevaluating, from a priority perspective,
what we have done in the past and asking ourselves whether we
need to do those in the future. Many of those lower priority pro-
grams have been set aside. But important programs like WAAS
and others are moving forward under the air traffic control mod-
ernization program, and we have funded it.

Senator MURRAY. A lot of the equipment out there is dozens of
years old and was scheduled to be replaced many years ago. We
have systems operating in our air traffic control system that are no
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longer supported by their vendors and are still years away from
being replaced. So how can we believe that a funding cut of this
size will not have any impact on the pace at which we replace that
aging equipment and the overall safety of our air traffic control
system?

Secretary MINETA. I will submit that for the record. I do not have
it with me right now. All of the equipment at the air traffic control
towers and en route centers is still being shoehorned into the budg-
et that we proposed.

Senator MURRAY. You will submit that to us for the record?

Secretary MINETA. I will submit that for the record.

Senator MURRAY. I will look at that.

[The information follows:]

The reductions in FAA’s Facilities and Equipment (F&E) in the fiscal year 2005
budget were concentrated in new technologies that do not replace existing equip-
ment, such as Data Link, the Local Area Augmentation System (LAAS), and
Nexcom 1B (next generation communications). These new technologies were going
to be expensive for both the agency and the industry. While there was support for
these items by the users, it was not clear it made sense to move forward with them
at this time given the economics of both the airline industry and Federal budget.

The FAA did not make any significant reductions to any programs that are cur-
rently necessary to modernize the airspace system. Funding levels for major mod-
ernization efforts like En Route Automation Modernization, the Standard Terminal
Automation Replacement System (STARS), airport surveillance radars (ASR-9 and
ASR-11), NEXCOM 1A, Advanced Technologies and Oceanic Procedures (ATOP),
and the Voice Switching and Control System (VSCS) will continue to move forward
in fiscal year 2005. The reduction in the size of the F&E budget will not affect the
success of these modernization efforts.

SAFETEA FUNDING LEVELS

Senator MURRAY. Mr. Secretary, in my opening statement I
voiced concern, as you heard, over the President’s insistence that
he will not support or sign a highway bill that exceeds $256 billion.
One concern I have since we’re talking about a 6-year authorization
bill is that the President might support a bill authorizing funding
at a certain level and then not live up to that commitment in his
budgets.

For example, when the Bush Administration sent up its own
aviation reauthorization bill it requested a total of $12 billion for
air traffic control modernization over a 4-year period. Now when
we look at the President’s budget request for 2005 and beyond we
see that he plans to request $2 billion less than the amount that
he himself asked to be authorized. He only wants to fund 83 per-
cent of the level he himself asked to be authorized.

Now when it comes to the surface transportation authorization
bill, President Bush has said that he will not support a highway
and transit bill that exceeds $256 billion over 6 years. Is the Presi-
dent committed to actually requesting that $256 billion in future
budgets or is this merely a statement on what he will allow to be
authorized?

Secretary MINETA. First of all, when we were putting SAFETEA
together over a year ago, we talked to the President and he laid
out certain principles such as no new taxes, no bonding mecha-
nisms, and no increase in the deficit. So taking those directions, we
then fashioned our SAFETEA proposal. The original proposal was
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for $247 billion. Then within the last 3 or 4 months, it was raised
to $256 billion.

But that action was based on the principles he laid out, prin-
ciples that he still stands by. In fact, prior to the Senate consider-
ation of the SAFETEA legislation, Treasury Secretary Snow and I
submitted a letter reflecting the administration’s position, saying
that any bill that violated these principles and that went above
$256 billion would be considered for veto.

Senator MURRAY. What I am actually asking is, when the Presi-
dent sent up his aviation reauthorization bill he requested $12 bil-
lion. We are now seeing his request come in much lower than that;
in fact $2 billion less. What assures us that the President will actu-
ally fund the $256 billion if that is what we authorize? Even
though I disagree with that, I am just asking you, what is the as-
surance that a year from now we are not going to see less re-
quested than even that $256 billion?

Secretary MINETA. We took the enacted 2004 levels and have re-
flected those in the budget proposal and in SAFETEA as well.

Senator MURRAY. What I am asking is, will the President commit
to asking for the budgets every year that meet that authorization,
whatever it is, that he signs into law?

Secretary MINETA. Based on our submitted SAFETEA proposal,
we do that.

HIGHWAY SAFETY

Senator MURRAY. Mr. Secretary, we have not always agreed on
budget matters when it comes to your department. One area where
we have always agreed has been the overarching importance of im-
proving safety in all transportation modes. I want to really com-
mend you, Mr. Secretary, for including funding in this year’s budg-
et for paid TV advertising to enhance seatbelt use and reduce
drunk driving. The Committee has added funding for the last 2
years and the administration has finally requested funding in its
12{005 budget request. This has been a very successful effort, as you

now.

This year the administration gave its surface transportation au-
thorization the title of SAFETEA, as you mentioned, to highlight
the importance of safety provisions in the bill. Could you just take
a minute to share with this committee what you consider to be the
most critical safety enhancements that were included in the admin-
istration’s bill?

Secretary MINETA. There is probably no single silver bullet that
addresses the whole issue of safety. Safety can be engineering.
Safety can be education. Safety can be a number of things. All of
these are reflected in the SAFETEA proposal.

But also in the 2005 budget, we are putting a great deal of em-
phasis—in fact I am doing a lot of traveling on the issue of both
safety belt use and driving while under the influence, DUI. I am
traveling to different States right now to try to get primary safety
belt laws, and have found this to be a responsive chord with many
States. But we only have, I believe, 20 States with primary safety
belt laws, so we have a long way to go. But we think that this is
a good effort and we are enlisting a lot of new players into the pro-
gram. I am going down to the NASCAR races in Richmond, in May
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I believe, and they will be endorsing the whole safety belt program
and initiating their program of promoting safety belt usage.

We are doing this with a number of different new constituent
groups to increase safety belt use in our country.

Senator MURRAY. I commend you on that and want to keep work-
ing with you on that.

CONTRACTING OUT FAA FUNCTIONS

Mr. Secretary, as you know, the only reason that the FAA bill
was allowed to pass the Senate was because FAA Administrator
Blakey provided a letter to the Senate Commerce Committee prom-
ising that she would not contract out any additional FAA functions
to the private sector during fiscal year 2004. I suspect this could
become a very serious issue for the fiscal year 2005 appropriations
bill because we do not have a commitment from you or Adminis-
trator Blakey for fiscal year 2005 or beyond.

As of now, are you aware of any areas where the FAA is consid-
ering contracting government work in fiscal year 2005 or beyond?

Secretary MINETA. Nothing additional that I anticipate. I think
the letter that Administrator Blakely submitted for fiscal year 2004
still stands. There was consideration at one point about additional
contract towers, but after the letter was sent

Senator MURRAY. What areas are under consideration?

Secretary MINETA. The ones that we had under consideration
prior to that letter relating to fiscal year 2004 were general avia-
tion towers for VFR, visual flight rule towers. We do not have any
further plans beyond the 2004 letter that she submitted.

Senator MURRAY. Can we get an identical letter for fiscal year
2005?

Secretary MINETA. Let me consult with Administrator Blakey on
that and get back to you on that.

[The information follows:]

The Federal Aviation Administration is engaged in completing the public/private

competition of the Flight Service Station (F'SS) Services. The competition’s results
are expected in March 2005.

Senator MURRAY. Mr. Chairman, I will wait for the remainder of
my questions. Thank you.
Senator SHELBY. Senator Bennett.

HIGHWAY FUNDING

Senator BENNETT. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Secretary, I have searched for things to question you about,
areas to probe and prod, and things are going so well I do not have
anything to complain about.

Secretary MINETA. You did such a great job as Assistant Sec-
retary of Transportation that

Senator BENNETT. It is the legacy of my service there.

Secretary MINETA. That is right.

Senator BENNETT. Last night we were alerted to this issue that
I mentioned in my opening statement. I know that it catches you
completely by surprise, as it did us. So I raise it now just so that
we can be in correspondence with you on this issue and see if we
cannot get it resolved.
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For the record, I support the President’s effort to get a SAFETEA
program in place, but I think at some point we are going to have
to spend more money. And if after he is safely reelected he were
to come back to the Congress and suggest that for the first time
since Ronald Reagan’s presidency it is time to raise the gas tax, he
would find a fairly sympathetic ear, at least with this Senator. I
know I am taking my own political career in my hands when I say
that because I am up for election this year too.

But the needs of our highway system, compound with the in-
creasing population and the age of the interstate highway system—
and one of the things that has happened that was not foreseen by
any means when the interstate highway system was conceived is
that interstates have now become the Main Streets of our major
metropolitan areas. The interstate system was supposed to bypass
downtowns so that people could go quickly across the whole coun-
try and never run into a traffic jam. Now the metropolitan centers
have relocated themselves around the interstate and the interstate
has become the main urban artery and therefore jam up now at
rush hour. The whole purpose of getting the interstate system in
place as conceived during the Eisenhower administration has been
frustrated by that.

There is a solution to it, and it is financial. We are going to have
to face up to that at some point in the future. So if you are back
here next year and I am back here next year, and both of those de-
pend on two separate elections, I will be happy to talk to you about
increased funding through that particular source.

Secretary MINETA. Thank you, Senator. We will respond.

Senator BENNETT. Thank you.

Senator SHELBY. Mr. Secretary, we will get into another round,
with your patience.

Secretary MINETA. Surely.

FULL FUNDING GRANT AGREEMENTS

Senator SHELBY. The Senate passed a 6-year reauthorization on
the surface transportation legislation, as you well know. The House
has not yet acted and the House Transportation and Infrastructure
Committee chairman has floated a proposal to pass a 2-year au-
thorization bill. If a 2-year extension of TEA21 is enacted into law,
is enough additional commitment authority created to execute a
full funding agreement for all of the projects listed as pending and
proposed in your 2005 budget request?

Do you want to get back with us for the record on that?

Secretary MINETA. We will get back to you on that for the record.

[The information follows:]

The 6-year surface transportation bill, the Safe, Accountable, Flexible, and Effi-
cient Transportation Equity Act, (SAFETEA) passed by the Senate on February 12,
2004, provides over $9.6 billion in budget authority over the fiscal year 2004—2009
period. Within this amount, $3.6 billion is needed to fully fund all approved or pend-
ing full funding grant agreements (FFGAs). This includes all projects with previous
commitments or reserved authority under TEA21.

Under the Senate-passed bill, $2.1 billion will cover anticipated FFGAs for the fol-
lowing projects: the first increment of New York East Side Access; Central Phoenix
East Valley Corridor; Charlotte-South Corridor LRT; Raleigh-Regional Rail; and,
Pittsburgh-North Shore Corridor. An additional $3.9 billion would be available for
future commitments and funding of projects anticipated after fiscal year 2005.
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Senator SHELBY. If there is not enough commitment authority to
cover all of the proposed funding agreements in the request, how
would FTA choose the projects that it would enter into a full fund-
ing agreement? You would have to make some decisions. We would
be very interested in that. What would your methodology be?

SHIP DISPOSAL

Ship disposal. MARAD has made progress in contracting for the
disposal of obsolete ships from the National Defense Reserve Fleet.
Recently, environmental concerns and legal proceedings have hin-
dered these efforts. What steps are being taken to address the envi-
ronmental issues, and what assurances is the Department pro-
viding to the countries receiving these ships that there is no envi-
ronmental danger to them? Do you want to do that for the record?

Secretary MINETA. Let me do that for the record. We have 13
ships under contract to a United Kingdom firm, of which four have
already been delivered and are sitting in the shipyard in Teaside,
England. With our 2005 budget request we hope to increase that
to 21 ships.

We have a very strict environmental process to go through in cer-
tifying those ships for movement to an overseas location. We used
to sell the ships to Bangladesh or India just to get rid of them. But
that is no longer possible. We have strict environmental require-
ments that have to be met. We do need the additional funding in
fiscal year 2005 to dispose of these additional ships.

[The information follows:]

MARAD is pursuing all disposal alternatives in order to find the most cost-effec-
tive, environmentally sound disposal capacity available. Disposal alternatives in-
clude domestic recycling, foreign recycling, artificial reefing, deep sinking, vessel do-
nation and vessel sales. The export of ships for recycling is a promising alternative
that has provided an increase in competition and capacity, which allows more ships
to be disposed of with available disposal funding. The ability to export ships for re-
cycling will expedite the elimination of high-priority ships, significantly mitigate the
environmental threat of oil discharge at the fleets and reduce the total number of
obsolete vessels significantly. Although foreign facilities are not subject to the same
worker and environmental laws as domestic facilities, MARAD’s current process re-
quires foreign companies to demonstrate to MARAD and the EPA that they can ac-
complish responsible vessel recycling in a manner that protects worker safety and
health.

MARAD’s actions to ensure that the ship disposal process does not harm the envi-
ronment include activities while the vessels are at our fleet anchorages, during tow
preparations and while at the contractor’s facility. Programmatic ship disposal pri-
orities and decisions are also made in order to mitigate any threat to the environ-
ment.

AT THE FLEET ANCHORAGE

MARAD has three reserve fleets sites where its non-retention, obsolete vessels are
moored—the James River Reserve Fleet in Virginia, the Beaumont Reserve Fleet in
Texas and the Suisun Bay Reserve Fleet in California. While the obsolete vessels
are at the fleet anchorages awaiting disposal, four activities take place that are im-
portant to ensuring the environment is protected:

—Condition assessments—the material condition of each vessel is assessed, rated
and ranked. Information from this assessment is factored into programmatic
disposal decisions.

—Vessel condition monitoring—vessels are monitored for trim, stability, hull and
fuel tank integrity, overall deterioration and adequate mooring.

—Vessel protective measures—cathodic hull protection systems are utilized to in-
hibit underwater hull deterioration and advanced mooring systems are used to
secure the ships and protect them against damage from high winds and storms.
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—Corrective repairs/maintenance—as required repairs and maintenance activities
include pumping, patching, securing watertight closures, etc.

DURING TOW PREPARATIONS & TOW EVOLUTIONS

MARAD’s contracts require the prime contractor to accomplish tow preparations
and the safe towing of the vessel to the contractor’s facility. Proper tow preparations
are ensured through the requirement for a U.S. Coast Guard inspection and
issuance of a loadline certificate prior to the commencement of the tow. The con-
tractor is also required to have in place an approved Emergency Spill Management
Plan and a Spill Management Company to be on call to respond if needed through-
out the duration of the tow. The contractor and tow company are also required to
carry the appropriate level of insurance to cover response and cleanup costs in the
event of a discharge incident.

AT THE CONTRACTOR’S FACILITY

During the solicitation process prior to contract award, prospective contractors are
assessed for their working knowledge of applicable environmental regulations. Tech-
nical Compliance Plans, required from the contractors, must provide comprehensive
information related to environmental compliance measures to be followed during the
course of the work. The contractor’s documentation related to environmental activi-
ties is closely reviewed during the evaluation process, and a pre-award survey of the
contractor’s facility is accomplished if the contractor is new to M

MARAD’s ship disposal contracts require the contractor and sub- contractors to
comply with all municipal, State and Federal regulations related to the removal,
handling, storage, transport and disposal of hazardous materials. This includes
prime and subcontractor compliance with regulations associated with permits and
licenses associated with hazardous material remediation activities. MARAD’s Office
of Environmental Activities provides on-site oversight over all project environmental
activities either directly or through the use of third-party commercial environmental
monitoring companies. MARAD’s oversight at disposal facilities is in addition to on-
site inspections and oversight provided by regional EPA and OSHA offices.

PROGRAMMATIC PRIORITIES

MARAD’s ship disposal program priority remains focused on disposal of MARAD’s
worse condition, non-retention vessels. The material condition of the ship and the
amount of residual fuels/oils contained onboard our vessels are factors that are con-
sidered in all vessel disposal decisions. Disposal of the “worse ships first” that con-
tain the most residual oils/fuels mitigates the environmental threat at MARAD’s
fleet sites. MARAD’s solicitations for disposal services include the higher priority
vessels, and negotiations involving proposals that do not specify vessels will target
the inclusion of higher priority vessels.

FUNDING FOR FAA CAPITAL PROGRAMS

Senator SHELBY. The FAA is requesting $2.5 billion for its cap-
ital account which is $400 million less than the authorized level
and more than $300 million less than last year’s enacted level.
Hard decisions will have to be made there, Mr. Secretary. How will
this impact the overall effort to modernize the air traffic control
system? How are you going to do more with less? I would like to
hear it. I would like to see you do it, but I do not know if you can.

Secretary MINETA. There are a lot of things that were once part
of the capital program that we had to reevaluate with a smaller
pool of resources. Some of the programs that were in prior facilities
and equipment budgets are not as high priority today as they
might have been when we had more money available. We are set-
ting those aside and the more high-priority items where we get
more value for the dollars expended are the ones we are moving
foreword.

Safety, capacity and delay are our mantra. Those three criteria
are what we use to look at what is in F&E and say, not as much
is needed today as when we were more flush with funds. So we are
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doing a lot of reprioritizing to make sure that we can get more with
less. It is not that we are adding more on top of what is already
there, but we are taking some of the lower priority items and set-
ting those aside, admittedly.

AMTRAK

Senator SHELBY. Mr. Secretary, the administration has requested
a subsidy of $900 million for Amtrak in 2005. Amtrak has once
again asked Congress for $1.8 billion and continues to express a
need for similar amounts over the next several years. Funding an
increase above the current year level of $1.2 billion will be ex-
tremely difficult. What is your long-term plan for Amtrak if the
current reauthorization proposal is not enacted?

Secretary MINETA. Mr. Chairman, the President’s reform pro-
osal that is before Congress is very important. We have requested
900 million for Amtrak, but we have also indicated that we would

support $1.4 billion in the outyears, in fiscal years 2006 to 2009,
conditional on Congress adopting the management and financial re-
forms that are in the President’s reform proposal.

We have already expended over $35 billion on Amtrak since
1973, and we cannot continue down that path. The President is
very supportive of intercity passenger rail, but not on the present
path that we are on. We feel very strongly that there has to be re-
form of Amtrak. So if the Congress were to adopt the President’s
reform legislation, then we would support $1.4 billion in the out-
years.

Another thing that has helped Amtrak is the action taken by the
Appropriations Committees to direct that Federal grants for Am-
trak be approved by DOT before going to Amtrak.

Amtrak has to submit an annual operating and capital financial
plan. We reviewed Amtrak’s plan in fiscal year 2003, and we are
now doing that for fiscal year 2004. We have just approved the op-
erating grant agreement with Amtrak, and FRA is now renewing
the capital grant agreement. I think that has been a very effective
tool in making sure that the financial management of Amtrak is
kept under control.

COMMERCIAL DRIVER’S LICENSE PROGRAM

Senator SHELBY. In spite of the greater attention that it has
drawn in recent years, the practice of fraudulently obtaining a com-
mercial driver’s license continues to pose a significant national
risk, both in terms of highway safety and terrorism prevention.
While the Department is to be commended, and I think we should
do this, for the efforts it has taken thus far to curb commercial
driver’s license abuse, I think a lot of work needs to be completed
in order to properly address the problem.

Mr. Secretary, what measures are being implemented and what
do you plan to undertake during the next year in order to end, as
much as you can, commercial driver’s license fraud? How does the
Department plan to oversee and coordinate with the States in order
to assure that commercial driver’s license fraud issuance is being
conducted in accordance with Federal guidelines?

Secretary MINETA. Mr. Chairman, let me properly respond to you
in writing, but one of the things that we are doing is to complete
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17 Federal compliance reviews of State commercial driver’s license
programs. The end result is to increase oversight of the commercial
driver’s license program.

As you know, this has been the subject of some FBI fraud inves-
tigations, and we are making sure that we plug that hole. We are
requesting $22 million for fiscal year 2005 for the State improve-
ment of driver’s license programs.

[The information follows:]

FMCSA has taken numerous actions to help prevent fraud in the Commercial
Driver’s License (CDL) Program. FMCSA’s CDL State Compliance Review require-
ment is in the fourth year of implementation. These compliance reviews are a nec-
essary part of the CDL program to ensure States have the statutes, administrative
procedures, and equipment to administer their CDL programs in compliance with
Federal requirements. Field personnel are receiving training on conducting compli-
ance reviews and identifying testing and licensing procedures that may be suscep-
tible to fraudulent activities. In continuation of supporting fraud prevention,
FMCSA is funding the updating of the CDL Identification Manual. The manual con-
tains color photographs of all U.S., Canadian, and Mexican commercial licenses for
use by State licensing and enforcement officials to help identify fraudulent CDLs.

FMCSA is addressing the 22 recommendations made by the Office of the Inspector
General (OIG) in the May 8, 2002, audit report on “Improving Testing and Licensing
of Commercial Drivers,” including ones related directly to fraud. Also in response
to an OIG recommendation, FMCSA issued a policy memo on July 1, 2002, specifi-
cally recommending States use covert monitoring of CDL examiners as the preferred
method of driver licensing oversight and control. Eighteen States have set up covert
monitoring programs with CDL grant funds.

The CDL grant program has six priority areas. Two of them include detection and
prevention of fraudulent activities including covert monitoring and implementation
of the social security number (SSN) verification for CDL drivers. FMCSA received
a $5.1 million fiscal year 2002 supplemental appropriation from Congress to verify
all existing and new CDL driver’s names, dates of birth and SSN with Social Secu-
rity Administration (SSA) records to help prevent fraudulent identities from being
created. To date, 40 States are verifying the CDL driver’s identify through the SSA.
The remaining States are being encouraged to establish SSN verification programs.

Finally, FMCSA, in cooperation with the American Association of Motor Vehicle
Administrators (AAMVA), identified 14 tasks to detect and reduce fraudulent activi-
ties related to driver licensing. FMCSA received an $8 million fiscal year 2002 sup-
plemental appropriation to help fund these tasks through a cooperative agreement.
In addition, through the cooperative agreement FMCSA and AAMVA have funded
revisions and upgrades to the CDL Knowledge Tests and software that can generate
multiple versions of the tests. To further the fraud prevention initiative AAMVA has
formed a Special Task Force on Identification Security to identify strategies to
achieve intended outcomes. FMCSA is working closely with AAMVA through partici-
pation on the Task Force working groups and is providing funding for these efforts.

Senator SHELBY. Senator Murray.
MOTOR CARRIER SAFETY COMPLIANCE REVIEWS

Senator MURRAY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Just following up on that, the number of compliance reviews, as
I understand, have dropped significantly. Are you aware of that? In
December 2002, FMCSA did 817 compliance reviews but only com-
pleted 472 as of December 2003. Since that is one of the most reli-
able ways to identify unsafe motor carriers why has there been
such a precipitous drop in the number of reviews?

Secretary MINETA. I am not sure of those figures. I know that 17
compliance reviews are going on right now. Let me check on that
State compliance number.

Senator MURRAY. Can you get the historical numbers for us?

Secretary MINETA. I will.

[The information follows:]
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In fiscal year 2003, FMCSA began implementation of Section 210 of the Motor
Carrier Safety Improvement Act of 1999 (MCSIA). MCSIA required FMCSA to es-
tablish regulations specifying minimum requirements for new entrant motor car-
riers seeking Federal interstate operating authority. There are approximately
40,000 to 50,000 new entrant carriers seeking operating authority each year.

During December 2002, 280 compliance reviews (CRs) were completed, which was
significantly lower than the normal average of 800 compliance reviews per month.
This was a result of an increased emphasis on conducting Security Sensitivity Visits
(SSVs) in response to the events surrounding the terrorist attacks on September 11,
2001. In December 2003, 817 compliance reviews were completed, an increase of 537
(192 percent) from the previous December. This shows that FMCSA returned to its
normal CR production level. Overall, 7,584 compliance reviews were completed in
fiscal year 2002 and 9,060 were completed in fiscal year 2003, an increase of 1,476
(19 percent) for the year.

During the first 5 months of fiscal year 2004, FMCSA completed 3,348 compliance
reviews, which is on target to meet FMCSA’s projected goal of completing 8,000
compliance reviews for fiscal year 2004. While the fiscal year 2004 target is lower
than the actual number of compliance reviews that were completed in fiscal year
2003, this is attributed to an increased emphasis on conducting New Entrant Safety
Audits, as mandated by Congress.

AMTRAK

Senator MURRAY. Thank you. Also following up on the Chair-
man’s comments on Amtrak—I know he is surprised that I am—
as you know, the reforms that you are requiring have to be consid-
ered by the Commerce Committee. This committee has to set the
number for fiscal year 2005. So I know that you are asking for the
Commerce Committee to follow up on that, and then if they do it
then you will go to the $1.4 billion in 2006 and beyond. But we are
looking at 2005.

A 26 percent reduction in the dollars to Amtrak is said by Am-
trak’s president to take it into bankruptcy. Your own Department
of Transportation Inspector General has testified in the past that
a precipitous cut of size would mean bankruptcy for Amtrak. So
that does not get us to 2006, if the Commerce Committee even
moves forward on this. I know you are a member of Amtrak’s board
of directors. Do you know something that we do not know that will
allow them to somehow manage to make it on a huge cut like this
until reforms are enacted, if they are enacted?

Secretary MINETA. The operating financial management reviews
that are going on right now, separate from the capital reviews, pro-
vide for some modicum of operational support. We cannot fund the
full amount because that would require—I think you folks appro-
priated $1.3 billion in——

Senator MURRAY. One-point-two billion dollars.

Secretary MINETA [continuing]. And that was on a request of $1.8
billion from Amtrak. They are able to survive on $1.2 billion. Again
they’re requesting $1.8 billion and again we are taking a very hard
look at

Senator MURRAY. But your budget request is for $900 million.

Secretary MINETA. Nine hundred million dollars.

Senator MURRAY. That is significantly below this year’s level,
and both the Amtrak president and your own IG have said that
Amtrak cannot survive at that level.

Secretary MINETA. Again, unless management and financial re-
forms are adopted——




26

Senator MURRAY. So you are basically saying that if your reforms
are not adopted that go into effect by 2006, Amtrak is not going
to survive?

Secretary MINETA. We are still holding by the need for reform.

Senator MURRAY. I hope the President takes a really active ap-
proach with the Commerce Committee.

Secretary MINETA. As I understand it, Senator McCain is about
to introduce an Amtrak reform bill.

Senator MURRAY. We have been down this road before. I would
just warn all of us that if this is the bar that we have to be held
to, we are going to be again looking at a shutdown in Amtrak I do
not think any of us wants to see.

CONTRACTING OUT FEDERAL JOBS

Mr. Secretary, earlier today you talked about your efforts in ad-
vancing the President’s management agenda. Last year this sub-
committee, as you will remember, was very involved in the issue
of establishing standards for contracting out Federal jobs. One of
the provisions that was included in last year’s bill was a prohibi-
tion against using fiscal year 2004 funds to contract out any Fed-
eral job overseas. I was really surprised to see that the President’s
budget specifically requests that that provision be deleted for 2005.

Could you cite for us some of the instances the Department of
Transportation might look at to take work that is currently being
conducted by Federal employees and send that work overseas?

Secretary MINETA. I do not have any knowledge of that. I will
have to take a look at that.

Senator MURRAY. I can see all of your staff shaking their heads.
Then can you tell us why the President wants flexibility if you
have no place that you actually want to send jobs overseas why he
is asking to eliminate that provision?

Secretary MINETA. The President’s request is a generic, govern-
ment-wide request. But I am not familiar with any plan within our
Department right now. Generally, we do not like to see these types
of prohibitions in legislative language. In any event, I am not
aware of any plans right now to send any jobs——

Senator MURRAY. I assume you would not object to that language
staying in for fiscal year 2005?

Secretary MINETA. On behalf of the administration, of course.
But in terms of any plans for, other than normal FAA employees
that are in foreign positions, I have got people in Iraq, Afghani-
stan—not Afghanistan, but Iraq right now. We have got air traffic
controllers in overseas spots. We have other positions. But we are
not—I do not see, other than

Senator MURRAY. But you do not see any problem with putting
the provision in again that does not allow any contracting out of
new jobs?

Secretary MINETA. Again, I do not like to see those kinds of pro-
hibitions placed in legislative language.

Senator MURRAY. But you have no plans to contract anything
out?

Secretary MINETA. I do not believe so.

[The information follows:]




27

The general provision in the President’s budget to delete the restriction on con-
tracting out Federal jobs overseas would apply government-wide, not just to the De-
partment of Transportation. The administration believes the restriction against con-
tracting out Federal jobs overseas is generally unnecessary because the government
wins a vast majority of the work and many activities that are the subject of competi-
tive sourcing must be performed domestically, for example facilities maintenance,
repair, and construction. In addition, the restriction could violate international
agreements that accord our trading partners non-discriminatory treatment in gov-
ernment procurement. These agreements generally provide for non-discriminatory
treatment to suppliers of foreign entities—i.e., they provide flexibility for both for-
eign and domestic contractors to perform work where performance will make the
contractor most competitive.

AIR TRAFFIC CONTROL MAINTENANCE STAFFING LEVELS

Senator MURRAY. Mr. Secretary, last Monday a Federal arbi-
trator ruled that the FAA has not met the minimum staffing levels
needed for the agency’s air traffic control maintenance functions
based on the agreement that was reached in fiscal year 2000 be-
tween the FAA and the union that represents the maintenance
technicians. The arbitrator ruled that the FAA must immediately
take action to raise the total number of technical employees to a
minimum staffing of 6,100. How was the FAA allowed to drop
below the agreed upon minimum staffing level?

Secretary MINETA. I will have to get back to you for the record
on that.

[The information follows:]

The Federal Aviation Administration believes that employees in operational con-

trol centers should be included in the air traffic control maintenance staffing level
of 6,100.

NEED FOR FULL COMPLEMENT OF TECHNICIANS

Senator MURRAY. Given the funding cuts you are requesting for
modernizing air traffic control equipment, would you not agree that
it would be prudent to have a full complement of technicians on
board to maintain and repair the FAA’s aging air traffic control
system?

Secretary MINETA. I will have to check on the labor negotiation
with the technicians group, the Professional Airway System Spe-
cialist (PASS) union, and the budgetary amount.

[The information follows:]

The Professional Airways Systems Specialists (PASS) union disagrees with the
Federal Aviation Administration’s (FAA) position that employees in operational con-
trol centers should be included in the air traffic control maintenance staffing level.

A Federal arbitrator ruled in favor of PASS, and the FAA has appealed the decision
to the Federal Labor Relations Authority.

DECISION OF THE FEDERAL ARBITRATOR

Senator MURRAY. If you could do that, and if you could let us
know how quickly you expect the FAA to comply with the decision
of the Federal arbitrator as well.

Secretary MINETA. Right. I am not sure whether they are binding
agreements or if there are any appeal provisions to that arbitrator.
I will have to check on that as well.

[The information follows:]

The Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) had 30 days from the date of the Fed-

eral arbitrator’s award (March 1, 2004) to file exceptions with the Federal Labor Re-
lations Authority (FLRA). After reviewing the award, the FAA felt that the arbi-
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trator exceeded his authority and abrogated management of its right to determine
where employees would be assigned, a right that management chose not to waive
according to the managers who were present in negotiations. The FAA’s exceptions
were filed on March 25, 2004, and we do not know how long the FLRA will take
before rendering a decision. The FLRA will allow the Professional Airways Systems
Specialists (PASS) union time to submit a response to the Agency exceptions and
will then issue a decision. There is no statutory time frame in which the FLRA must
issue a decision.

THIRD RUNWAY AT SEATAC INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

Senator MURRAY. One last question. Mr. Secretary, a lot has
been said about the need to streamline the environmental review
process for highways, runways, and rail systems. Unfortunately,
the poster child project for long delays that impact many projects
is the third runway project at Seattle Tacoma International Air-
port.

As you know, we have been trying to complete construction of
that third runway for more than 16 years. The added costs for com-
plying with the environmental rules for the construction of that
runway as well as the associated cost for delays have grown by
over $200 million just in the last 4 years. As you can imagine, this
has put an incredible amount of pressure on the ability of the air-
port authority to finance the completion of that project. Are you
aware of that situation at Seattle Tacoma International Airport?

Secretary MINETA. I was just made aware of this $198.1 million
request that SeaTac is making of FAA 2 days ago. This is the third
request on the part of SeaTac. The original agreement for a letter
of intent was in 1997 for, I believe, $198 million, or $190 million
or so then. Then that was revised several years ago by an addi-
tional $55 million, $57 million. This is the third request for an in-
crease in the letter of intent for the SeaTac Airport. We will have
to take a look at what we are doing with that whole program.

[The information follows:]

In 1997, the FAA issued a Letter of Intent (LOI) to Seattle Tacoma International
Airport (SeaTac) for construction of a third runway, committing $161.5 million in
AIP funds over the period of fiscal year 1998-2010 towards the then estimated $587
million total project cost. This represented a 28 percent Federal share of the total
cost; higher than recent projects of a similar scope (e.g., Atlanta and St. Louis were
around 18-20 percent). The LOI was amended in 2000 to add $55 million in funds
over the period fiscal year 2001-2010 to help offset unanticipated increases to the

roject cost, then estimated at $773 million. This raised the total LOI amount to
5216.5 million, but kept the Federal share around 28 percent.

SeaTac has recently submitted an application for a second amendment to the LOI,
this time for an additional $198.1 million over the period fiscal year 2005-2014.
This would raise the LOI total to $414.6 million and the Federal share to 37 percent
of the total project cost, now estimated at $1.1 billion.

The Federal Aviation Administration is still reviewing SeaTac’s application. There
is some concern about the high level of Federal funding—the precedent-setting Fed-
eral share of 37 percent that would result from this amendment, which is signifi-
cantly higher than similar recent projects. While we support the SeaTac third run-
way project, and are sensitive to the environmental burdens which have caused
some of the cost increase, we need to examine the application in detail before com-
mitting to a funding decision. As part of that examination the FAA is retaining the
services of an outside financial consultant to review SeaTac’s financial condition.

Senator MURRAY. I appreciate that. I am currently pursuing an
amendment to the airport’s existing Federal commitment to ensure

that there is adequate financing to meet all of those new environ-
mental costs. As you know, a lot of it has been because of Federal
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environmental laws and I want to pursue that with you, and I
would like to ask
Secretary MINETA. I think that it is not only Federal environ-
mental laws, but also local lawsuits that have been brought
against;
Senator MURRAY. Under Federal environmental laws. That is
why the lawsuits have been brought.

I just want to know from you, is DOT still committed to the com-
pletion of the third runway project and the economic benefits that
it will bring to the Northwest region?

Secretary MINETA. I assume so. I assume that it still is.

Senator MURRAY. Would you be willing to sit down with myself,
Marion Blakey and the appropriate airport officials to talk about
this issue?

Secretary MINETA. Absolutely.

Senator MURRAY. I would appreciate that very much.

Secretary MINETA. Absolutely.

Senator MURRAY. Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and thank you for your indulgence.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEWS FOR ALASKAN HIGHWAY PROJECTS
Senator SHELBY. Senator Stevens, thank you for joining us.
STATEMENT OF SENATOR TED STEVENS

Senator STEVENS. Thank you very much. I am pleased to be here
to be with young men who have brand new ideas. That is an in-
house story up here, Mr. Secretary. I am pleased to have a chance
to come before you because there are some significant transpor-
tation problems in Alaska in which the process seems to be
changed, and it becomes significant because the increased reviews
are burdensome and sometimes unwarranted as far as our State is
concerned. I am sure you know, we have a fairly small allowance
for highway construction in Alaska, and to take more of it for the
environmental review is becoming burdensome.

Let me just state this to you. The Federal Highway Adminis-
trator brought a training team to Alaska to assist in management
and planning of environmental steps required in Title 23 of the
Federal aid program. In addition, it relocated a third environ-
mental review person in Juneau to help review the environmental
documents prepared under the National Environmental Protection
Act.

Apparently, this work has become rather than an assistance to
get the job done quicker, it has added additional thresholds for the
transportation projects. We previously used some categorical exclu-
sions versus an environmental assessment (EA) and now we are
getting into the environmental impact statement (EIS) on very
small items.

For instance, an erosion control project on the Dalton Highway,
that is the highway that goes north from Fairbanks to the North
Slope, was slated for an EA. Last year it was processed as a cat-
egorical exclusion. It is a dirt highway. It has been there for years
and it was an erosion control item that should have been handled
just as routine maintenance as a matter of fact.
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A bridge replacement of an existing bridge on the Alaska High-
way—that is our only highway that goes out to the south 48—now
requires a full EIS. This is a bridge that is critical to the gas pipe-
line that we are planning now, and I understand that the EIS on
this bridge replacement will delay the project by 1 to 2 years. It
could well add another year to two to the building of the pipeline.

There is a brush cutting project that was performed by Saga,
that is an AmeriCorps nonprofit, who was told to seek an EA. That
is the environmental assessment. These always have been the cat-
egorical exclusion type things, just brush cutting. We are entirely
in favor of strict environmental protection, but when it comes to
have an increase in the level of requirements that have to be
achieved, the heightened review is causing delays, increasing costs,
moving projects from one year to another because of the short con-
struction season that we have in Alaska.

This is not associated only with the interior of Alaska. The Knik
Arm Bridge project, the Juneau Access Road, the Gravina Road, all
priority projects that are in the TEA21 reauthorization have now
been indicated to have the highest level of environmental review to
proceed.

I would like to see if you could explain why at this time we
have—by the way, I think we have the highest level of unemploy-
ment per capita in the country. We have a declining economy be-
cause of the loss of our oil industry, our mining industry, our tim-
ber industry, the basic industries associated with the harvesting of
timber. I cannot tell you—we have now got a series of projects that
would have provided employment during this coming work season,
hopefully, provide a slight bridge for many people over into the
next year when some of these other things might be started up
again.

But why can we not go back to the simple processes that were
used for years in connection with these highway projects and not
go up the ladder in terms of environmental protection unless there
is a significant new perspective involved. All the things I am talk-
ing about are facilities in place that require improvement or main-
tenance.

Secretary MINETA. Mr. Chairman, I am not familiar enough with
these projects to be able to respond, but let me get back to you in
writing after talking to our Federal highway folks. I would think
that if a new person has been dispatched to Juneau to deal with
environmental reviews, it was done in the hope of speeding up the
process. Let me find out why categorical exclusion for a mainte-
nance project now requires an environmental assessment. I just do
not know these projects or the process well enough to be able to
respond.

[The information follows:]

The U.S. Department of Transportation is actively working to facilitate the envi-
ronmental review processes in Alaska. For example, the Federal Highway Adminis-
tration (FHWA) entered into an agreement with the Alaska Department of Trans-
portation and Public Facilities (DOTPF) that allows many projects with minor envi-
ronmental impacts to be processed as categorical exclusions without project-specific
review by FHWA. Other projects do involve a FHWA review, but are determined
to qualify as categorical exclusions. The net result is that the vast majority of Alas-
ka DOTPF’s projects are advanced as categorical exclusions. In a small number of

cases, where the project facts do not support a categorical exclusion, FHWA will
work with the Alaska DOTPF to prepare an environmental assessment (EA). In
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those situations where environmental impacts are found to be significant, a full en-
vironmental impact statement is required by law.

With respect to the specific projects mentioned, the FHWA has reached an under-
standing with Alaska DOTPF that allows the projects to advance with the appro-
priate level of environmental review. For example, the brush cutting projects men-
tioned all qualify for a categorical exclusion under FHWA’s agreement with the
Alaska DOTPF. The Tanana River Bridge is being advanced with an environmental
assessment because of potential impacts involving historic resources, native lands,
hazardous wastes, and recreational lands. The Dalton Highway erosion control
project was done with an environmental assessment, because the project involved
extensive channelization of an environmentally important stream. The Alaska Divi-
sion approved the EA for the Dalton project on April 7, 2004, and the Division ex-
pects to issue a Finding of No Significant Impact (FONSI) in the near future.

FHWA is fully committed to efficient environmental review processes in Alaska.
To position itself for success, FHWA has recently worked with Alaska DOTPF to
host a number of training and process improvement efforts. FHWA is confident that
these efforts will lead to timely project approvals and environmental outcomes that
fully respect Alaska’s unique environmental resources.

Senator STEVENS. I would hope personally you would take the
time to come up this summer and go see some of these.

Secretary MINETA. I will, yes, sir.

Senator STEVENS. In the last decade we have only had one court
review of any environmental matter related to highways. We have
been perfectly operating with total cooperation. Now it seems that
because of the elevated requirement in each instance, we are build-
ing towards more and more court review. Since these are routine
projects, brush cutting, bridge replacement, erosion control, I just
do not quite understand it. So I would hope that you would take
the time this summer sometime and come up and we will get a
small plane and go out and look at some of these.

Secretary MINETA. I would be more than happy to accept that in-
vitation.

Senator STEVENS. Thank you. I shall give you some appropriate
dates.

Secretary MINETA. Great.

SHORT SEA SHIPPING

Senator SHELBY. Thank you, Chairman Stevens.

Mr. Secretary, the Maritime Administration is considering ex-
ploring the potential for short sea freight shipping to assist in re-
ducing highway congestion. Can you tell us more about this pro-
posal?

Secretary MINETA. The goal of short sea shipping is to utilize our
ports and inland waterways. There are two factors that are driving
this. One is that ships are getting larger with more containers on-
board, and our own ports are unable to handle these larger con-
tainer ships. When the larger ships come in, you can take the con-
tainers, put them on barges and lighters and then move the con-
tainers from Boston to New York to Baltimore to Savannah, or
wherever their transshipment points might be. This can provide
some relief to the traffic that is already on the highways, especially
along the Eastern I-95 seaboard.

Senator SHELBY. What about the Tennessee-Tombigbee down in
the southeast?

Secretary MINETA. That is an inland waterway. We would look
at inland waterways as part of this whole effort.
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FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION REORGANIZATION

Senator SHELBY. Although FTA’s senior management contends
that its reorganization proposal is preliminary, the subcommittee
has evidence that could lead a reasonable person to conclude that
the plans have been finalized, Mr. Secretary, without your approval
or Congressional approval. For example, we have information re-
garding staffing decisions, implementation schedules, and even of-
fice farewell parties. Not for you, of course.

I would like to work with you, I think the committee would, to
ensure that FTA follows internal Departmental guidelines and the
requirements expressed in the appropriations act. Are you willing
to do that?

Secretary MINETA. Absolutely. There are situations where we
have to ask what comes first? We have to abide by OPM regula-
tions and by OMB regulations. The first body we have to look at
related to reorganization is OPM.

There are a lot of things that need to be started in a preliminary
way. None of these are set in concrete because we have to come to
you for reprogramming requests. The requests have to clear our
own internal channels within the Department and with OMB as
well. In terms of my own reorganization of the Department, there
are a number of things going on related to hazmat and to other
parts of our Department.

So, yes, word gets out about intended organizational changes, but
they are not carved in stone yet. We have to make sure that we
are in compliance with what OPM says and OMB says. But we will
definitely work with you, and we know that we have to do that. It
is not a question of having to do it, we want to do it.

ADDITIONAL COMMITTEE QUESTIONS

Senator SHELBY. Thank you.

Senator Murray, do you have any other questions?

Senator MURRAY. No.

[The following questions were not asked at the hearing, but were
submitted to the Department for response subsequent to the hear-
ing:]

QUESTIONS SUBMITTED BY SENATOR RICHARD C. SHELBY
NATCA: PAY FOR PERFORMANCE

Question. Secretary Mineta, you stated earlier in testimony before the sub-
committee that there are problems with NATCA units in delivering pay for perform-
ance. Please provide the Department’s assessment of the problems that you alluded
to in your testimony.

Answer. As we stated, the impasse was submitted to Congress. The statutory 60-
day timeframe for Congress to act on the impasse has passed, so the FAA is now
proceeding to implement its pay plan in the remaining NATCA bargaining units.
The FAA is currently considering what its next steps are in this regard.

FTA ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Question. Please break out in detail the reasons for the administrative cost in-
creases at the FTA.

Answer. The $4.8 million dollar increase in FTA’s administrative expenses is nec-
essary to carry out its mission. Funds will be used to strategically manage human
resources, competitively outsource commercial functions, expand electronic govern-
ment, improve financial management, and integrate budget and performance, as
outlined in the President’s Management Agenda. In doing so, FTA will enable the
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long-term management of its workforce and fosters a citizen-centered, results-based
government that is well organized, flexible, and will improve in performance.

Additional administrative expenses are needed as follows:

—An increase of $1.5 million is necessary to cover the annualized fiscal year 2004
pay raise and the annualized January 2005 pay raise, health benefits increase,
and mandatory within grade increases.

—An increase of $1.02 million is needed to support ten additional FTEs. These
resources are needed to comply with the expanded technical assistance require-
ments of projects in the planning process, implement statutory requirements for
New Starts projects, meet the requirements of major program initiatives, and
coordinate projects and reviews with other agencies, States and local project
Sponsors.

—An increase of $0.2 million is required due to the inability of the General Serv-
ices Administration and the owner of the Headquarters’ Nassif building to nego-
tiate a new lease agreement at fair market value.

—An increase of $0.5 million is needed to cover inflation and increased service
costs, which increases are in line with the OMB deflator for non-pay activities.
Failure to fund inflation results in the agency’s inability to pay the full cost of
essential non-pay activities.

—An increase of $1.1 million is needed to continue improving our information
technology infrastructure, which includes: application security and accreditation
of information technology systems; an increase in the Transportation Award
and Management System to facilitate grant processing and contract approval,
and ensuring that the Information Technology infrastructure works with emerg-
ing technologies to support cost accounting and core accountabilities.

—An additional $0.5 million is needed to support workforce planning and training
to ensure that there is available staff of the appropriate skill mix to carryout
program development and oversight responsibilities.

MOTOR FUEL TAX EVASION

Question. Mr. Secretary, what suggestions do you have for getting the IRS to im-
prove its efforts to reduce the estimated $1 billion in fuel tax evasion that occurs
each year? Please provide for the record any correspondence from DOT to the De-
partment of the Treasury about the importance of this issue.

Answer. The Department has proposed the authorization of $54.5 million for fiscal
year 2005 to address motor fuel tax evasion. Of this amount, State enforcement
agencies would share $4.5 million to enhance programs at the State level including
but not limited to motor fuel tax audits and examinations, dyed fuel sampling, and
training. Two million dollars would be set aside for intergovernmental enforcement
efforts including specific projects coordinated with Federal and State agencies that
are not traditionally involved in motor fuel tax enforcement as well as those that
have been involved in the past, but currently may not be working on the issue.

The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) would receive the remaining $48 million. Of
that amount, $4.5 million would be provided for the operation and maintenance of
the automated fuel tracking system mandated by the Transportation Equity Act for
the 21st Century. Forty-four million dollars would be used by the IRS to begin de-
velopment, operation, and maintenance of a registration system for pipelines, ves-
sels, and barges and their operators, that make bulk transfers of taxable fuels, in-
cluding developing a decal/transponder to be used to display proof of payment. It
would also be used to establish, operate and maintain an electronic database of
heavy vehicle highway use tax payments; and for additional enforcement efforts in-
cluding audits, examinations and criminal investigations.

The automated fuel tracking system provides an important tool to the IRS and
the States for monitoring fuel tax compliance. The additional requirement of elec-
tronic reporting will allow the IRS to have more complete information on the move-
frgnent of fuel into and out of terminals thus assisting IRS and State enforcement ef-

orts.

The proposal to give the IRS significantly more funding than in the past comes
with additional accountability. The IRS would be required to submit reports on
progress made in the development of any new automated systems, criminal inves-
tigations, audits and examinations. Also, the Federal Highway Administration
(FHWA) will be more involved in the development of any work plans related to new
program requirements and in the oversight of such projects.

The expanded resources that will be available to the IRS for improved database
systems and greater enforcement efforts will allow the agency more flexibility in its
role as enforcer. The combined efforts of the IRS and the States resulting from the
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significant increase in funding will provide an opportunity to reduce motor fuel tax
evasion.

Interaction between the FHWA and the IRS most often takes place over the tele-
phone or through face-to-face meetings. A memorandum of understanding between
the FHWA and the IRS was signed to provide for the development of the automated
fuel tracking system mandated in the TEA21. A scanned copy is provided.

REVISED MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
BETWEEN THE
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (DOT) AND
THE INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE (IRS)

OBJECTIVE: The objective of this revised Memorandum of Understanding (MOU}) is to
show changes to Section 1l, ltem C as agreed upon by the U.S. Department of
Transportation (DOT) and the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) for State funding under the
provisions of Public Law 105-178, the Transportation Equity Act for the 21st Century
(TEA-21), as amended, as they relate to highway use tax evasion projects.

GENERAL: On June 9, 1998, the President signed Public Law 105-178, authorizing
highway, highway safety, transit, and other surface transportation programs for the next
6 years. TEA-21, as amended, builds on the initiatives established in the Intermodal
Surface Transportation Efficiency Act of 1991 (ISTEA), and combines the continuation
and improvement of current programs with new initiatives to meet America's needs
through efficient and flexible transportation. A key part of funding these highway
improvements is the collection of Federal and State revenues used for this purpose.

Recognizing the need to ensure compliance for revenue collection, TEA-21 provides that
the Secretary of Transportation, here and after referred to as the Secretary, shall carry
out highway use tax evasion projects in accordance with the provisions of Section 1114
of TEA-21 which amends section 143 of title 23 of the United States Code (U.S.C.).
Further, that the funds made available to carry out Section 1114, may be allocated to the
IRS and the States, and that the Secretary shall not impese any condition on the use of
funds allocated to the IRS under this subsection.

However, Title 23, U.S.C. Section 143 (b)(4), as amended, limits the use of funds,
provides for the establishment and operation of an automated fuel reporting system,
provides for a funding priority and a memorandum of understanding between the
Secretary and IRS for the purposes of the development and maintenance by the IRS of
an excise fuel reporting system.

The DOT and the IRS agree that:

1. LIMITATION ON USE OF FUNDS

Funds made available to carry out highway use tax evasion projects shall be used only:
{(A) to expand efforts to enhance motor fuef tax enforcement;

(B) to fund additional IRS staff, but only to carry out functions described in this
paragraph;
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(C) to supplement motor fuel tax examinations and criminal investigations;

(D) to develop automated data processing tools to monitor motor fuel production
and sales,

{E) to evaluate and implement registration and reporting requirements for motor
fuel taxpayers;

(F) to reimburse State expenses that supplement existing fuel tax compliance
efforts; and

{G) to analyze and implement programs to reduce tax evasion associated with
other highway use taxes.

AUTOMATED EXCISE FUEL REPORTING SYSTEM, (the system) a.k.a. Excise
Fuel Information Reporting System (ExFIRS)

(A) The IRS shall develop and maintain the system through contracts;

(1) The IRS believes that a participative process with all stakeholders is the
best method to use in the design and development of ExFIRS. By
October 10, 1998, the IRS will form a workgroup with participants
representing industry, States, the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA),
and the IRS. The workgroup will be headed by the IRS Director, Excise
Taxes and will develop an implementation plan to provide for a basic
automated excise fuel reporting system, and for enhancements that will
best serve the stakeholders, including industry, the States, the FHWA,
other government agencies, the IRS, etc.

(2) Workgroup members will determine the system needs and assist the IRS in

assembling an implementation plan for use in contracting;
(3) The IRS will use the most expeditious method to obtain qualified
contractors to complete the project.
The implementation plan will be a living document. The plan will be
monitorad by the workgroup on an ongoing basis with revisions to the
content, scope, and timing, as needed.

4

=

{B) The system shall be under the control of the IRS;

{C) to allow for a transition of funding for the States, the IRS projects that the

following funding can be made available to the States for motor fusl compliance

projects.
FY99 - $2,175,000.
FY0OO - § 652,000.
FY01- § 521,000.
FY02- $ 391,000.
FY03- $ 261,000,
Total - $4,000,000.
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(D) The system shall be made available for use by appropriate State and Federal
revenue, tax, and law enforcement authorities, subject to section 6103 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986,

FUNDING AVAILABILITY AND PRIORITY

(A) The Secretary shall, by Reimbursable Agreement, provide available funding to
the IRS for the automated fuel reporting and for highway use tax evasion
projects as described in TEA-21, as amended.

{B) The Secretary shall make available sufficient funds for each of Fiscal Years
1898 through 2003 to the IRS to establish and operate an automated fuel
reporting system as its first priority.

V. OVERSIGHT

The FHWA Director, Office of Transportation Policy Studies and the IRS Director,
Specialty Taxes will review the development and implementation of highway use
tax evasion project activity.

/L@mﬁ&ﬁ/ r Z 244*4{ (7200 Tty Knrrd vl
4 Kenneth R. WyKle Date Charles O. Rossotti Date

Administrator Commissioner
Federal Highway Administration Internal Revenue Service
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OVERSIGHT OF MEGA-PROJECTS

Question. In your earlier testimony you indicated that project managers will pro-
vide improved oversight of mega-projects. What estimated cost savings can the com-
mittee expect to see in these types of projects? What type of review occurs prior to
awarding a contract to determine if the contractor has actually underbid the true
cosgs? Should more oversight occur in this area? What results could we expect to
see?

Answer. The Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) is assigning a designated
Project Oversight Manager to each active major project, dedicated full-time to that
specific major project. The Oversight Manager may draw upon resources from with-
in his/her Division Office in order to form an integrated project team that is respon-
sible for providing proper Federal stewardship and oversight of the major project.
The Project Oversight Manager is responsible for the overall administration and op-
eration of the Project from a Federal stewardship/oversight perspective. He/she
maintains an ongoing review process to ensure that proper oversight and controls
are in place and functioning including cost containment and financial management.
While the cost savings are difficult to quantify, having an FHWA official on-site has
resulted in efficiencies in project management. In addition, the FHWA’s independent
review of the costs and schedules via finance plans and annual updates have con-
tributed to efficiencies in cost and schedule control.

Title 23, Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), part 635, section 114(a) requires de-
sign-bid-build Federal-aid contracts to be awarded only on the basis of the lowest
responsive bid submitted by a bidder meeting the criteria of responsibility. This re-
quirement applies to all Federal-aid projects, including major projects. For Federal-
aid projects that are determined to be “State-approved projects”, the State Transpor-
tation Agency (STA) may act for the FHWA in the bid analysis and award process,
but must follow the justification and documentation procedures of 23 CFR
635.114(b—j) by documenting the project files. STAs may follow their own justifica-
tion and documentation procedures for non-NHS projects.

Bid analysis is the basis for justifying contract award or rejection of the bids. The
bid analysis process, pursuant to 23 CFR 635.114(c), is an examination of the unit
bid prices for reasonable conformance with the engineer’s estimated prices and other
factors beyond the comparison of prices. A proper bid analysis helps to ensure that
funds are being used in the most effective manner. The FHWA'’s review of the bids
should parallel the STA’s review. Together, both agencies should be assured that
good competition and the lowest possible price were received. The FHWA’s concur-
rence in award is a step in the obligation and expenditure of Federal funds and is
the authorization to proceed with construction.

The current oversight of the bidding process is adequate. Division Offices are ac-
tively involved with the processes of the State DOTs to assure that 23 CFR require-
ments are met. In addition, the concurrence in award process serves as an addi-
tional check and is only provided after receipt and review of the tabulation of bids.
This applies to all Federal-aid oversight projects, including major projects. Division
Offices also conduct process reviews of the bidding process when appropriate.

The oversight provided by the Major Project Oversight Manager model has been
successful and has provided for adequate oversight. However, the Agency is con-
stantly striving to provide the employees in these positions the tools to enhance
their abilities to improve their oversight. For instance, in the upcoming year, the
Agency will be providing multidisciplinary training in several core competency
areas: project management, financial management, cost estimating, communica-
tions, and leadership. In addition, the FHWA Contract Administration Course con-
tains modules which address the bidding process.

By continuing to improve the core competencies of the Major Project Oversight
Managers, the Agency can expect to see a cadre of FHWA managers who are able
to provide more of a collaborative leadership role to major projects. In this role, the
Managers will work together with the entire project delivery team to deliver major
projects that maintain the public’s trust and confidence in our ability to deliver the
Federal-aid Highway Program. The additional training provided about the bidding
process to both Federal and State employees via the Contract Administration
Course results in an awareness of the bidding process requirements and sound pro-
cedures that optimize process efficiencies and limits opportunities for legal chal-
lenges and fraud.

For the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) and the oversight of mega-projects,
future projects will be tightly managed to ensure the project cost will not exceed
5 percent of the baseline project cost. A project recovery plan will be required when
the projected baseline cost is going to exceed more than 5 percent. To determine
whether a contractor may have underbid the cost, a bid analysis will continue to
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be performed prior to awarding the contract. FTA will continue to review the grant-
ee’s bid analysis to ensure project cost control. Increased oversight reviews will re-
sult in more successful projects such as the New Orleans Canal Streetcar Line, Dal-
las North Central LRT and Interstate Max LRT in Portland.

As for the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA), they too have a process to re-
view the costs of major airport improvement projects and continue to perform sig-
nificant oversight functions. All Airport Improvement Program grantees must per-
form an analysis of cost or price for all procurement actions, including contract
modifications.

FULL FUNDING GRANT AGREEMENT COMMITMENT AUTHORITY

Question. Earlier in the hearing, Mr. Secretary, you were asked how FTA would
chose from among projects that it has proposed to enter into full funding contracts
during fiscal year 2005 without sufficient commitment authority to cover all of the
projects. Please explain this for the record. What methodology would be used?

Answer. There is sufficient commitment authority to cover all of the projects rec-
ommended for Section 5309 New Starts funding in the President’s Budget for fiscal
year 2005 and the Annual Report on New Starts: Proposed Allocations of Funds for
fiscal year 2005 (the current “Annual New Starts Report”). Year by year, in each
Presidential Budget and Annual New Starts Report for the coming fiscal year, the
Department and FTA make recommendations for New Starts funding only insofar
as there is sufficient commitment authority available to cover those recommenda-
tions—the Department and FTA never exceed the amount of available commitment
authority.

In any given year, the selection of projects for proposed Full Funding Grant
Agreements is based on: (1) the relative merits of the projects under consideration,
and (2) the “readiness” of each project under consideration to begin construction.
Specifically, the relative merits of each project are determined through FTA’s appli-
cation of both the project justification and local financial commitment criteria estab-
lished by 49 U.S.C. §5309(e) and fleshed out by the regulations at 49 C.F.R. Part
611. The “readiness” of each project is a judgment of the reliability of the cost, budg-
et, and schedule for that project, in light of a number of factors, including the grant-
ee’s demonstration of its technical capacity to build and operate the project, its exe-
cution of all principal third-party agreements relevant to the project, an assessment
of the risks inherent in the project that could affect cost and schedule, and the level
of engineering and final design that has been completed.

MOTOR CARRIER SAFETY AUDITS

Question. Given the high passage rate of FMCSA safety audits, some critics
charge that the FMCSA safety audit procedure has become more of an outreach and
education campaign than a safety assurance mechanism. Please explain why the ad-
ministration of the Safety Audit process of the New Entrant program by FMCSA
is an optimal use of the resources allocated to ensuring that unqualified carriers are
kept off the roads.

Answer. Data shows that new entrants are identified as at-risk carriers. The pro-
gram was originally designed as an outreach and education effort. FMCSA is retool-
ing the program to give it a greater enforcement focus. The concept is to engage car-
riers at the beginning of operations so there is not as a great a need to perform
compliance reviews, a more optimal use of Agency resources. FMCSA will work to
tie new entrant audits and compliance reviews together as the programs advance.

FMCSA is developing a rulemaking proposal that would strengthen the pass/fail
criteria for the new entrant program. The rulemaking enhancements will identify
carriers without basic safety management controls. As a result of our proposed
changes, FMCSA anticipates a significant increase in the number of enforcement ac-
tions taken against new entrant carriers.

MOTOR CARRIER COMPLIANCE REVIEWS

Question. As FMCSA has increased the number of new entrant safety audits, the
number of compliance reviews it undertakes has dropped significantly. Why has the
number of compliance reviews dropped so sharply in recent months? Is the level of
funding that is requested in fiscal year 2005 sufficient to meet the goals of the agen-
cy? Do you believe that a safety audit can substitute for a compliance review? Do
you intend to increase the number of compliance reviews in the remainder of fiscal
year 2004 and fiscal year 20057

Answer. The number of compliance reviews has dropped significantly due pri-
marily to the focus on Safety Security Visits as a result of September 11, 2001, and
the implementation of the new entrant program. Prior to the program’s implementa-
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tion, FMCSA conducted approximately 12,000 compliance reviews per year. Cur-
rently, the Agency conducts approximately 8,000 per calendar year. In fiscal year
2004, more States will begin to conduct safety audits. However, FMCSA does not
expect to realize fully the benefit of State participation until fiscal year 2005.

The new entrant audit was originally designed as an educational tool for carriers
beginning interstate operations rather than a substitute for the compliance review
program. A compliance review may be conducted on new entrants during the safety
monitoring period if their performance warrants such a review. To meet the Motor
Carrier Safety Improvement Act’s statutory requirement to conduct these new en-
trant safety audits, FMCSA diverted resources from the conduct of compliance re-
views to the conduct of 40,000-50,000 new entrant audits annually. As a result,
FMCSA expects to conduct approximately 7,500 compliance reviews in fiscal year
2004, which is 500 lower than FMCSA’s goal of completing 8,000 compliance reviews
in fiscal year 2004. However, FMCSA expects to meet its target of 8,000 compliance
reviews in fiscal year 2005.

INTELLIGENT TRANSPORTATION SYSTEMS ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Question. The Department disbanded the Intelligent Transportation Systems
(ITS) Advisory Committee more than a year ago. Do you plan to appoint new mem-
bers to the ITS Advisory Board or is this body no longer necessary?

Answer. Two years ago, the Department of Transportation’s (DOT) leadership un-
dertook an internal review of the future direction of the ITS program. A key decision
resulting from that examination was to establish a Federal Advisory Committee to
the DOT for ITS. From the ITS program’s inception a dozen years ago until June
2003, ITS America had served in this advisory capacity and was well positioned to
bring government and industry together in development of the ITS program. As the
ITS industry and the DOT’s ITS program matured, DOT leadership concluded that
the time was right to consider a new Advisory Committee. This tested method of
consultation with the public serves the Department well across other modes of
transportation, and the ITS Advisory Committee would give the Department a new
and valuable consultative asset. A new DOT Advisory Committee is being consid-
ered under the Federal Advisory Committee Act. Organizations and individuals with
resources and expertise to offer meaningful advice would be invited to serve.

SHIP DISPOSAL

Question. How many obsolete vessels from the National Defense Reserve Fleet
will be disposed of with the funds provided in fiscal year 2004?

Answer. The Maritime Administration (MARAD) has removed 13 ships so far in
fiscal year 2004, resulting from contracts awarded with fiscal year 2003 funding.
MARAD anticipates awards, utilizing funds provided in fiscal year 2004, to result
in the disposal of an additional 12 obsolete ships from the NDRF.

Question. How many ships does MARAD plan to dispose of in fiscal year 2005 if
the requested amount is provided?

Answer. MARAD plans to dispose of approximately 15 vessels from the National
Defense Reserve Fleet.

Question. What is MARAD’s plan for meeting the 2006 deadline to dispose of all
of the obsolete fleet?

Answer. While the Congressionally mandated September 30, 2006 deadline was
for the removal of all vessels, a more achievable goal is to remove all vessels that
have a high or moderate risk by 2006. To reach that goal, MARAD plans to elimi-
nate the backlog of vessels that accumulated in the 1990’s; remove all “high” and
“moderate” priority ships (approximately 65 ships) at a rate of 20-24 ships per year;
and maintain only “low” priority ships at the fleet sites. MARAD’s annual target
is to maintain no more than 40-60 low priority vessels at all three fleet sites. With
the projected designation of 45 ships as obsolete over the next 3—5 years, an annual
disposal rate of 20—24 ships will have to be maintained for 3—4 years beyond 2006,
to ai:lhieve and maintain an obsolete vessel fleet size at a maximum range of 40—
60 ships.

In addition to maintaining only “low” priority obsolete ships at the fleets, further
mitigation of environmental risks will be achieved by continuing to use the estab-
lished protocol for the acceptance of vessels into the National Defense Reserve Fleet
and the practices used when downgrading vessels to non-retention status. This in-
cludes accomplishment of material condition and liquid load surveys, removal of
readily removable hazardous materials, preliminary residual hazardous material
characterization, and defueling of vessels to the maximum extent. In addition, as
newer vessels (built after 1980) are downgraded to non-retention status and enter
the fleets, a decline in the quantities of hazmats, such as, PCBs will be evident.
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While MARAD will continue to pursue all disposal options to ensure the best
value disposal decisions, having foreign recycling as a viable disposal option in
2004—2006 and beyond will help MARAD achieve the annual goal of reducing the
inventory by 20-24 vessels.

MARITIME GUARANTEED LOANS (TITLE XI)

Question. Public Law 108-11 prohibited the obligation of funds under the Title
XI program until the Inspector General (IG) certifies that MARAD has adopted and
implemented the recommendations of No. CR-2003-031 to his satisfaction. What is
the status of the implementation of these recommendations?

Answer. MARAD and the Office of the Inspector General have been working close-
ly to adopt and implement the recommendations contained in the report. A formal
IG report providing the certification is expected in June 2004.

PRESIDENTIAL AND POLITICAL APPOINTEES

Question. Please provide the number of presidential and political appointees cur-
rently on board at the Department and break out by operating administration and
office of the Office of the Secretary as well as by title and grade.

Answer. The information follows.

PRESIDENTIAL, SENIOR EXECUTIVE SERVICE NON-CAREER, AND SCHEDULE C APPOINTEES AS OF

MAY 4, 2004
Title Grade
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY

Presidential Appointee—Immediate Office of the Secretary:

Secretary EX-I
Non-career SES—Immediate Office of the Secretary:

Chief of Staff ES-00

Assistant to the Secretary for Policy ES-00

Assistant to the Secretary for Policy ES-00

Deputy Chief of Staff ES-00
Schedule C—Immediate Office of the Secretary:

White House Liaison GS-15

Assistant to the Secretary for Policy GS-15

Assistant to the Secretary for Policy GS-14

Special Assistant to the Secretary and Deputy Director for Scheduling and Advance ...........ccoccoeevveriveeinns GS-14

Director for Scheduling and Advance GS-15

Special Assistant for Scheduling and Advance GS-13

Scheduling and Advance Assistant GS-7
Limited Term SES—DOffice of the Deputy Secretary:

Acting Deputy Secretary/Counselor to the Secretary ES-00
Schedule C—Office of the Deputy Secretary:

Counselor to the Deputy Secretary GS-15
Presidential Appointee—Office of the Under Secretary of Transportation for Policy:

Under Secretary EX-II
Non-career SES—Office of the Under Secretary of Transportation for Policy:

Counselor to the Under Secretary ES-00
Schedule C—Office of the Under Secretary of Transportation for Policy:

Executive Assistant to the Under Secretary GS-12
Non-career SES—Executive Secretariat:

Director ES-00
Non-career SES—Office of Civil Rights:

Director ES-00
Non-career SES—Office of Small & Disadvantaged Business Utilization:

Director ES-00
Non-career SES—Office of the Chief Information Officer:

Chief Information Officer ES-00
Non-career SES—Office of Public Affairs:

Assistant to the Secretary and Director of Public Affairs ES-00
Schedule C—Office of Public Affairs:

Deputy Director of Public Affairs GS-15

Deputy Director of Communications GS-15

Associate Director for Speechwriting GS-15

Speechwriter GS-15
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PRESIDENTIAL, SENIOR EXECUTIVE SERVICE NON-CAREER, AND SCHEDULE C APPOINTEES AS OF
MAY 4, 2004—Continued

Title Grade

Speechwriter GS-14

Special Assistant to the Director GS-14

Special Assistant for Public Affairs GS-10
Presidential Appointee—Assistant Secretary for Budget and Programs:

Assistant Secretary & CFO EX-IV
Non-career SES—Office of the Assistant Secretary for Budget and Programs:

Deputy Assistant Secretary for Management and Budget ES-00
Presidential Appointee—Office of the General Counsel:

General Counsel EX-IV
Presidential Appointee—Office of the Assistant Secretary for Transportation Policy:

Assistant Secretary EX-IV
Non-career SES—Office of the Assistant Secretary for Transportation Policy:

Deputy Assistant Secretary ES-00
Schedule C—Office of the Assistant Secretary for Transportation Policy:

Special Assistant to the Assistant Secretary GS-12
Presidential Appointee—Office of the Assistant Secretary for Aviation and International Affairs:

Assistant Secretary EX-IV
Non-career SES—Office of the Assistant Secretary for Aviation and International Affairs:

Deputy Assistant Secretary ES-00
Schedule C—Office of the Assistant Secretary for Aviation and International Affairs:

Special Assistant GS-15
Presidential Appointee—DOffice of the Assistant Secretary for Governmental Affairs:

Assistant Secretary EX-IV
Non-career SES—Office of the Assistant Secretary for Governmental Affairs:

Deputy Assistant Secretary ES-00
Schedule C—Office of the Assistant Secretary for Governmental Affairs:

Special Assistant to the Assistant Secretary GS-15

Associate Director for Governmental Affairs GS-14

Associate Director for Governmental Affairs GS-13

Associate Director for Governmental Affairs GS-13

Associate Director for Governmental Affairs GS-13

Associate Director for Intergovernmental Affairs GS-14

OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL

Presidential Appointee:
Inspector General EX-IV

FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION

Presidential Appointee:

Administrator EX-II

Deputy Administrator EX-IV
Non-career SES:

Chief Counsel Fl-4

Associate Administrator for Airports Fl-4

Assistant Administrator for International Aviation Fl-4

Assistant Administrator for Aviation Policy, Planning & Environment Fl-4

Assistant Administrator for Government & Industry Affairs Fl-4

Assistant Administrator for Public Affairs Fl-4
Schedule C:

Special Assistant to the Deputy Administrator GG-15

FEDERAL HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION
Presidential Appointee:

Administrator EX-II
Non-career SES:

Deputy Administrator ES-00

Chief Counsel ES-00

Associate Administrator for Public Affairs ES-00

Associate Administrator for Policy ES-00
Schedule C:

Special Assistant to the Administrator GS-15

Special Assistant GS-14

Special Assistant to the Policy Director GS-14
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PRESIDENTIAL, SENIOR EXECUTIVE SERVICE NON-CAREER, AND SCHEDULE C APPOINTEES AS OF
MAY 4, 2004—Continued

Title Grade

Special Assistant to the Chief Counsel GS-13
FEDERAL RAILROAD ADMINISTRATION

Presidential Appointee:

Administrator EX-III
Non-career SES:

Deputy Administrator ES-00
Schedule C:

Director of Public Affairs GS-13

NATIONAL HIGHWAY TRAFFIC SAFETY ADMINISTRATION

Presidential Appointee:

Administrator EX-II
Non-career SES:

Deputy Administrator ES-00

Chief Counsel ES-00

Associate Administrator for External Affairs ES-00
Schedule C:

Special Assistant GS-15

FEDERAL MOTOR CARRIER SAFETY ADMINISTRATION

Presidential Appointee:

Administrator EX-II
Non-career SES:

Deputy Administrator ES-00

Chief Counsel ES-00
Schedule C:

Director, Office of Communications & Senior Policy Advisor GS-15

Special Assistant to the Administrator for Intergovernmental Affairs GS-14

FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION

Presidential Appointee:

Administrator EX-II
Non-career SES:

Deputy Administrator ES-00

Chief Counsel ES-00
Schedule C:

Staff Assistant GS-10

RESEARCH AND SPECIAL PROGRAMS ADMINISTRATION

Non-career SES:

Deputy Administrator ES-00
Schedule C:
Director of Policy and Program Support GS-15

SAINT LAWRENCE SEAWAY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Presidential Appointee:
Administrator EX-IV

SURFACE TRANSPORTATION BOARD

Presidential Appointee:
Chairman EX-II

MARITIME ADMINISTRATION

Presidential Appointee:

Administrator EX-II
Non-career SES:

Deputy Administrator ES-00

Chief Counsel ES-00
Schedule C:

Director, Office of Congressional and Public Affairs GS-15

Special Assistant to the Administrator GS-14




43

Question. Please provide by operating administration or office of the Office of the
Secretary the number of vacant presidential and political positions and the grade
and 2005 salary for each position.

Answer. The information follows.

VACANT PRESIDENTIAL AND POLITICAL POSITIONS—AS OF MAY 04, 2004

Title Grade Salary

Office of the Secretary:

Deputy Secretary EX-II $158,100

Special Assistant for Scheduling and Advance GS-7 34,184

Director of Drug Enforcement and Program Compliance ..........cccoeverveverevereinnns GS—15 e 100,231

Deputy Assistant Secretary for Governmental Affairs ES-0 125,264

Associate Director for Governmental Affairs GS—14 ..o 96,572
Federal Aviation Administration:

Deputy Assistant Administrator for Government and Industry Affairs ............... [ T 110,256
Maritime Administration:

Senior Policy Advisor GS—15 oo 113,597
National Highway Traffic Safety Administration:

Director, Office of Public and Consumer Affairs GS-15 113,597

Director of Intergovernmental and Congressional Affairs ............ccocoveevsrivnnrinnns GS-15 113,597
Federal Transit Administration:

Associate Administrator for Communications and Legislative Affairs ES-0 137,000
Research and Special Programs Administration:

Administrator EX-II ... 145,600

Special Assistant GS-12 .. 68,722

Director of Public Affairs GS=15 e 113,597
Bureau of Transportation Statistics:

Director EX-V 128,200
Surface Transportation Board:

Board Memb EX-IV ... 136,900

Board Member EX-IV ... 136,900

NOTES.—The PAS salaries are based on the statutory pay level. The SES salaries are based on the middle of the new senior executive pay
range, or a salary determined for the proposed incumbent. The GS salaries are based on the middle of the range (step 5) for each grade (as
previously encumbered), or as proposed.

Question. How many new political positions are requested for fiscal year 2005?

Answer. There are 10 new political positions being requested for fiscal year 2005.

Question. Please display by office of the Office of the Secretary or operating ad-
ministration, each new political position and its grade and salary.

Answer. The information follows.

Title Grade Salary

Office of the Secretary:

Special Counsel $113,597

Special Assistant (to the A/S for Trans. Policy) 113,597

Special Assistant (to the A/S for Aviation & International Affairs ...........c......... 96,572

Security Liaison 113,597

Special Assistant for Information Technology Security ..........ccocooevvmriemiiineiinnnns 113,597
Federal Railroad Administration:

Deputy Administrator ES-0 125,264

Special Assistant GS=15 o 113,597
Federal Transit Administration:

Special Assistant for Intergovernmental Affairs GS—15 e 113,597
Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration

Special Assistant GS=12 v 68,722
Research and Special Programs Administration:

Special Assistant GS=12 v 68,722

The SES position salaries are estimated at the middle of the new senior executive
pay range, or based on a salary determined for the proposed incumbent.

The GS salaries are estimated at the middle of the range (step 5) for each grade
proposed.

Question. Please provide a timetable for filling vacant political positions up to the
statutory cap.

Answer. The information follows.
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VACANT POLITICAL POSITIONS—AS OF MAY 04, 2004

Title Grade Salary Incumbent Status
Office of the Secretary:

Deputy Secretary EX-I $158,100 | Pending Senate Con-
firmation Candidate to
come aboard—6/13/04

Special Assistant for Scheduling and Advance .........ccccccccvereennne GS-15 100,231 | Candidate to come
aboard—=6/13/04

Director of Drug Enforcement and Program Compliance ............. ES-00 125,264 | Interviewing—candidate
to come aboard

Associate Director for Governmental Affairs ...........ccocoveivnrineens GS-14 96,572 | Interviewing

Federal Aviation Administration:
Deputy Assistant Administrator for Government and Industry Af- | GS—15 110,256 | Candidate to come on
fairs. Board—=6/13/04
Maritime Administration:
Senior Policy Advisor GS-15 113,597 | Interviewing
National Highway Traffic Safety Administration:
Director, Office of Public and Consumer Affairs 113,597 | Interviewing
Director of Intergovernmental and Congressional Affairs ... | coecoerons | covivniiiecins
Federal Transit Administration:
Associate Administrator for Communications and Legislative Af- | ES-0 137,000 | Candidate to come
fairs. aboard—=6/1/04
Research and Special Programs Administration:

Administration EX-II 145,600 | Interviewing

Special Assistant GS-12 68,722 | Interviewing

Director of Public Affairs GS-15 113,597 | Interviewing

Bureau of Transportation Statistics:
Director EX-V 128,200 | Interviewing
Surface Transportation Board:

Board Member EX-IV 136,900 | Pending Senate Con-
firmation

Board Memb EX-IV 136,900 | Pending Senate Con-

firmation

Question. Please provide a table that compares the number of political appointees
by agency or by office of the Office of the Secretary over the last 5 years.

Answer. The information follows.

Operating Administration

Fiscal Year

2000

2001

2004

2002 2003 As of

5/4/04

Secretarial Offices

N

Budget and Programs

General Counsel

Governmental Affairs

Administration

Transportation Policy

Federal Aviation Administration

Federal Highway Administration

National Highway Traffic Safety Administration ...
Federal Railroad Administration

Federal Transit Administration

Saint Lawrence Seaway Development Corp

Research and Special Programs Administration ...

Office of the Inspector General

Bureau of Transportation Statistics
Surface Transportation Board

Maritime Administration
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OST STAFFING

Question. Please provide a table that compares the estimated average grade for
each office of the Office of the Secretary for fiscal year 2005 with the past 5 fiscal
years.

Answer. The information follows.

FISCAL YEAR 2001-2005 AVERAGE GRADES

X X X Fiscal

Office Yeur 2001 | Yoot 2002 | Yeor 2003 Year 2004
Secretarial Offices 10.9 10.9 11.1 11.1
Budget & Programs 11.6 11.8 11.8 11.3
General Counsel 11.8 117 11.9 12.0
Governmental Affairs 10.1 11.0 11.6 11.2
Administration 11.8 114 11.1 11.2
Aviation & Int'l Affairs 11.0 11.1 11.1 11.1
Transportation Policy 10.6 10.0 10.0 10.3

NOTE.—Fiscal year 2005 data not available.

Question. Please provide a table listing by office of the Office of the Secretary, on-
board staffing and FTE for fiscal year 2000, through 2004 and the fiscal year 2005
requested full-time positions and FTE.

Answer. The information follows.
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FUNDING LEVELS FOR OST OFFICES

Question. Please provide a table displaying the enacted level for fiscal years 2002,
2003, 2004 for each office of the Office of the Secretary and the amount of any trans-
fers of funds between offices (or to date for fiscal year 2004).

Answer. The table below provides the enacted level for fiscal years 2002, 2003,
2004 for each office of the Office of the Secretary. There were no enacted transfers
of funds between OST offices for fiscal years 2002, 2003, or 2004 (as of May 31,
2004).

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY ENACTED LEVELS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2002 THRU FISCAL YEAR 2004

[In thousands of dollars]

Accounts FiscaEInYaeC?;dZOOZ FiscaEIn‘ge;édZOOS FiscaEInzeC%dZOOA
SALARIES & EXPENSES:
Office of the Secretary 1,929 2,197 2,179
Office of the Deputy Secretary 619 804 690
Office of the Under Secretary of Transportation for Policy .........c.. | woovvoviiniinniirenns 12,300 12,141
Aviation/International Affairs ! 10,479
Office of Intermodalism 2
Board of Contract Appeals 507 607 690
Office of Small & Disadvantaged Business Utilization ... . 540 1,259 1,251
Office of Intelligence & Security 3 1,321 [1,631] 1,972
Office of the Chief Information Officer ... 6,141 13,026 7,396
Office of General Counsel 13,355 15,466 14,985
Office of Governmental Affairs 2,282 2,423 2,267.6
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Budget .......c.ccoooverirveiinenn. 7,728 8,273 8,418
Office of the Assistant Secretary of Administration ............ccccc.... 19,250 28,717 22,984
Office of Public Affairs 1,723 1,903 1,889
TOTAL: SALARIES & EXPENSES 67,078 88,357 78,290
TRANSPORTATION PLANNING RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT (TPR&D) ...... 11,580 23,463 20,426
OFFICE OF CIVIL RIGHTS 8,362 8,514 8,365
MINORITY BUSINESS OUTREACH 3,000 2,949 2,958
MINORITY BUSINESS RESOURCE CENTER PROGRAM (MBRC) ... 900 894 895
ESSENTIAL AIR SERVICE/PAYMENTS TO AIR CARRIERS . 62,952 51,761 51,662
NEW HEADQUARTERS BUILDING 0 0 0
TOTALS 153,872 175,938 162,596

1Beginning in fiscal year 2003, the Office of Aviation/International Affairs is consolidated in the Office of the Under Secretary of Transpor-
tation for Policy.

2For fiscal year 2002, the Office of Intermodalism was funded within FHWA. Beginning in fiscal year 2003 the Office of Intermodalism
transfers from FHWA to OST Office of the Under Secretary of Transportation for Policy.

31n fiscal year 2003, the Office of Intelligence and Security was funded through a reimbursable agreement.

DETAILS TO THE OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY

Question. Are any staff of the operating administrations detailed to the Office of
the Secretary?

Answer. Three employees from the Federal Highway Administration are detailed
to the Office of the Secretary.

OST TRAVEL COSTS

Question. Are any travel costs for the Office of the Secretary expected to be paid
by the modes?

Answer. In certain circumstances, travel costs for the Secretary are paid for by
the operating administrations. For example, if the Secretary attends an event re-
lated to airports, the Federal Aviation Administration may pay for the Secretary’s
travel expenses. The Secretary’s attendance at these events helps to enhance the
missions of the operating administrations.

Question. Please provide a table indicating the amount of travel costs for the Of-
fice of the Secretary that operating administrations paid for in part or in total.
Please breakdown by operating administrations for the past 5 years.

Answer. The information follows.
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IMMEDIATE OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY

Direct Fiscal Year | Fiscal Year | Fiscal Year | Fiscal Year | Fiscal Year
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
MARAD $1,400 | v
FAA $2,826
NHTSA 12,633
FTA E KT I — $3,804 541 122
FRA 156 $703
FHWA 1,865 1,891 1,339 730 988
FMCSA 124 584
RSPA 654
USCG 462
Total 4,121 2,594 5,143 3,395 17,807

Question. Are there guidelines from the Office of the Secretary to the operating
administrations that define the circumstances under which the Secretarial travel is
paid by the modes? If so, please provide for the record.

Answer. There are no formal written guidelines, but in practice, the modes may
be asked to cover the cost of the Secretary’s advance staff if an administrator re-
quests the Secretary’s presence at an event or conference that deals specifically with
the mission of that particular mode. The Secretary’s own travel and per diem costs
are paid by his immediate office.

Question. Has the DOT General Counsel ever looked at the practice of operating
administrations paying for OST travel costs to be in compliance with the general
provision carried annually in appropriations Acts prohibiting assessments? Please
provide the legal opinion, if there is one, for the record.

Answer. Staff attorneys in the Office of the General Counsel have periodically pro-
vided oral advice to agency officials and staff concerning applicable restrictions on
making assessments to help fund OST travel costs that are contained in our annual
appropriations acts. The General Counsel and his staff have not issued any legal
opinions that address this subject.

CHARGES TO THE MODES BY OST

Question. Please provide a list of all accounts that are financed by charges to the
modes from OST.

Answer. There are no OST accounts that are financed by charges to the modes.
However, for services provided by OST to the modes, charges are collected through
reimbursable agreements. For fiscal year 2004, Salaries and Expense and Office of
Civil Rights accounts have reimbursable agreements with the modes.

PROPOSALS TO REORGANIZE OST OFFICES

Question. Is there any proposal to consolidate or reorganize any office of the Office
of the Secretary assumed in the fiscal year 2005 budget request?

Answer. No, there was no proposal to consolidate or reorganize any office of the
Office of the Secretary assumed in the fiscal year 2005 request; however, on June
25, 2004, President Bush transmitted a fiscal year 2005 budget amendment to Con-
gress that would place the operational responsibility for the Office of Emergency
Transportation and Crisis Management Center from the Research and Special Pro-
grams Administration to the Office of the Secretary.

PROPOSALS TO CONSOLIDATE OST BUDGET ACTIVITIES

Question. Does the fiscal year 2005 budget request reflect any proposals to consoli-
date budget activities of the Office of the Secretary?

Answer. The fiscal year 2005 request reflects a consolidated budget activity for
the Office of the Secretary, the Office of the Deputy Secretary and the Executive
S}fcrg}?riat. This will provide greater flexibility in the day-to-day management of
the ices.

PROPOSALS TO REORGANIZE MODAL OFFICES

Question. Are there any proposals or plans to consolidate, reorganize, or restruc-
ture any offices of the operating administrations in fiscal year 2005?

Answer. In fiscal year 2005, the Department plans to consolidate, reorganize, or
restructure the following offices:
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Federal Aviation Administration (FAA)
The FAA continues to reorganize lines of business and services within the newly
created Air Traffic Organization. Also, the Flight Service Stations are currently un-

dergoing an A-76 study which will result in the contracting out or a restructuring
of this operation within FAA. Results of this will not be finalized until March 2005.

Research and Special Programs Administration (RSPA)/Office of the Secretary of
Transportation (OST)

On June 25, 2004, President Bush transmitted a fiscal year 2005 budget amend-
ment to Congress that would place the operational responsibility for the Office of
Emergency Transportation and Crisis Management Center from RSPA to OST.

IMMEDIATE OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY

Question. Please provide detailed justification for the fiscal year 2005 budget re-
quest for the Immediate Office of the Secretary by object class.
Answer. The information follows.

[In thousands of dollars]

Object Class Amount

Full-time permanent 1,522
QOther than full-time permanent 364
QOther personnel compensation 29

Total personnel compensation 1,915
Civilian personnel benefits 507
Travel & transportation of things 209
Other services 14
Supplies and materials 12

Total 2,738

Question. Please explain in detail the assumptions used to develop the fiscal year
2005 budget request for personnel compensation and benefits of the Immediate Of-
fice of the Secretary.

Answer. The assumptions used to develop the Immediate Office of the Secretary’s
budget request for personnel compensation and benefits are computed as follows: (1)
Salary and related benefits from the previous year (fiscal year 2004) are computed
based on enacted levels; (2) The fiscal year 2004 enacted level is annualized to fund
the full year cost of the fiscal year 2004 pay raise (4.1 percent for an additional one-
fourth of a year) and to fully fund the cost of any other personnel actions that oc-
curred in fiscal year 2004; (3) The fiscal year 2005 base is inflated by the proposed
fiscal year 2005 pay raise estimated at 1.5 percent (for three-fourths of a year). No
new staff increases are proposed for fiscal year 2005.

Question. Please provide the number of staffing positions and FTE requested, in-
dicating direct and reimbursable, for the Immediate Office of the Secretary.

Answer. The information follows.

Positions FTE

Direct 15 15
Reimbursable 7 7

Question. Please provide a table listing current staffing for the Immediate Office
of the Secretary compared to levels at the end of each quarter of past 5 fiscal years.
Answer. The 5-year FTE history is as follows:

FISCAL YEAR 2001 ACTUAL 22
FISCAL YEAR 2002 ACTUAL 21
FISCAL YEAR 2003 ACTUAL 20
FISCAL YEAR 2004 ENACTED 22
FISCAL YEAR 2004 ON-BOARD 123
FISCAL YEAR 2005 REQUEST 22

1As of March 30, 2004.

Question. Please provide details on anticipated contract expenses in the Imme-
diate Office of the Secretary.
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Answer. Anticipated contract expenses in the Immediate Office of the Secretary
consist of:

Description of Services Amount
Subscriptions $10,300
Other small contracts 4,000

IMMEDIATE OFFICE OF THE DEPUTY SECRETARY

Question. Please provide detailed justification for the fiscal year 2005 budget re-
quest for the Office of the Deputy Secretary by object class.
Answer. The information follows.

[In thousands of dollars]

Object Class Amount

Full-time permanent 534
QOther than full-time permanent 214
Other personnel compensation 40

Total personnel compensation 788
Civilian personnel benefits 200
Travel & transportation of things 67
Other services 11
Supplies and materials 4

Total 1,070

Question. Please explain in detail the assumptions used to develop the fiscal year
2005 budget request for personnel compensation and benefits of the Office of the
Deputy Secretary.

Answer. The assumptions used to develop the Office of the Deputy Secretary’s
budget request for personnel compensation and benefits are computed as follows: (1)
Salary and related benefits from the previous year (fiscal year 2004) are computed
based on enacted levels; (2) The fiscal year 2004 enacted level is annualized to fund
the full year cost of the fiscal year 2004 pay raise (4.1 percent for an additional one-
fourth of a year) and to fully fund the cost of any other personnel actions that oc-
curred in fiscal year 2004; (3) The fiscal year 2005 base is inflated by the proposed
fiscal year 2005 pay raise estimated at 1.5 percent (for three-fourths of a year). No
new staff increases are proposed for fiscal year 2005.

Question. Please provide the number of staffing positions and FTE requested, in-
dicating direct and reimbursable, for the Office of the Deputy Secretary.

Answer. The information follows.

Positions FTE

Direct 7 7
Reimbursable 0 0

Question. Please provide a table listing current staffing for the Office of the Dep-
uty Secretary compared to levels at the end of each quarter of past 5 fiscal years.
Answer. The 5-year FTE history is as follows:

FISCAL YEAR 2001 ACTUAL
FISCAL YEAR 2002 ACTUAL
FISCAL YEAR 2003 ACTUAL
FISCAL YEAR 2004 ENACTED
FISCAL YEAR 2004 ON-BOARD 1
FISCAL YEAR 2005 REQUEST

1As of March 30, 2004.
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Question. Please provide details on anticipated contract expenses in the Office of
the Deputy Secretary.

Answer. Anticipated contract expenses in the Office of the Deputy Secretary con-
sist of:
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Description of Services Amount

Subscriptions $7.,000

OFFICE OF THE EXECUTIVE SECRETARIAT

Question. Please provide detailed justification for the fiscal year 2005 budget re-
quest for the Office of the Executive Secretariat by object class.
Answer. The information follows.

[In thousands of dollars]

Object Class Amount
Full-time permanent 1,159
QOther than full-time permanent 35
QOther personnel compensation 10
Total personnel compensation 1,204
Civilian personnel benefits 255
Other services 39
Supplies and materials 2
Total 1,500

Question. Please explain in detail the assumptions used to develop the fiscal year
2005 budget request for personnel compensation and benefits of the Office of the Ex-
ecutive Secretariat.

Answer. The assumptions used to develop the Office of the Executive Secretariat’s
budget request for personnel compensation and benefits are computed as follows: (1)
Salary and related benefits from the previous year (fiscal year 2004) are computed
based on enacted levels; (2) The fiscal year 2004 enacted level is annualized to fund
the full year cost of the fiscal year 2004 pay raise (4.1 percent for an additional one-
fourth of a year) and to fully fund the cost of any other personnel actions that oc-
curred in fiscal year 2004; (3) The fiscal year 2005 base is inflated by the proposed
fiscal year 2005 pay raise estimated at 1.5 percent (for three-fourths of a year). No
new staff increases are proposed for fiscal year 2005.

Question. Please provide the number of staffing positions and FTE requested, in-
dicating direct and reimbursable, for the Office of the Executive Secretariat.

Answer. The information follows.

Positions FTE

Direct 15 15
Reimbursable 0 0

Question. Please provide a table listing current staffing for the Office of the Exec-
utive Secretariat compared to levels at the end of each quarter of past 5 fiscal years.
Answer. The 5-year FTE history is as follows:

FISCAL YEAR 2001 ACTUAL 14
FISCAL YEAR 2002 ACTUAL 15
FISCAL YEAR 2003 ACTUAL 14
FISCAL YEAR 2004 ENACTED 15
FISCAL YEAR 2004 ON-BOARD 112
FISCAL YEAR 2005 REQUEST 15

1As of March 30, 2004.

Question. Please provide details on anticipated contract expenses in the Office of
the Executive Secretariat.

Answer. Anticipated contract expenses in the Office of the Executive Secretariat
consist of:

Description of Services Amount

Enhancements & maintenance of scheduling system $38,600
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OFFICE OF THE UNDER SECRETARY FOR TRANSPORTATION POLICY

Question. Please provide detailed justification for the fiscal year 2005 budget re-
quest for the Office of the Under Secretary for Transportation Policy by object class.
Answer. The information follows.

[In thousands of dollars]

Object Class Amount

Full-time permanent 9,779
QOther than full-time permanent 666
Other personnel compensation 56

Total personnel compensation 10,501
Civilian personnel benefits 2,102
Travel & transportation of things 207
Other services 101
Supplies and materials 7

Total 12,918

Question. Please explain in detail the assumptions used to develop the fiscal year
2005 budget request for personnel compensation and benefits of the Office of the
Under Secretary for Transportation Policy.

Answer. The assumptions used to develop the Office of the Under Secretary for
Transportation Policy’s budget request for personnel compensation and benefits are
computed as follows: (1) Salary and related benefits from the previous year (fiscal
year 2004) are computed based on enacted levels; (2) The fiscal year 2004 enacted
level is annualized to fund the full year cost of the fiscal year 2004 pay raise (4.1
percent for an additional one-fourth of a year) and to fully fund the cost of any other
personnel actions that occurred in fiscal year 2004; (3) The fiscal year 2005 base
is inflated by the proposed fiscal year 2005 pay raise estimated at 1.5 percent (for
three-fourths of a year). No new staff increases are proposed for fiscal year 2005.

Question. Please provide the number of staffing positions and FTE requested, in-
dicating direct and reimbursable, for the Office of the Under Secretary for Transpor-
tation Policy.

Answer. The information follows.

Positions FTE

Direct 128 124
Reimbursable 4 4

Question. Please provide a table listing current staffing for the Office of the Under
Secretary for Transportation Policy compared to levels at the end of each quarter
of past 5 fiscal years.

Answer. The 5-year FTE history is as follows:

FISCAL YEAR 2001 ACTUAL 116
FISCAL YEAR 2002 ACTUAL 121
FISCAL YEAR 2003 ACTUAL 105
FISCAL YEAR 2004 ENACTED 128
FISCAL YEAR 2004 ON-BOARD 1115
FISCAL YEAR 2005 REQUEST 128

1As of March 30, 2004.

Question. Please provide details on anticipated contract expenses in the Office of
the Under Secretary for Transportation Policy.

Answer. Anticipated contract expenses in the Office of the Under Secretary for
Transportation Policy consist of:

Description of Services Amount

Translation services $19,200
Interpreters 41,000
Embassy charges 41,000
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BOARD OF CONTRACT APPEALS

Question. Please provide detailed justification for the fiscal year 2005 budget re-
quest for the Board of Contract Appeals by object class.
Answer. The information follows.

[In thousands of dollars]

Object Class Amount
Full-time permanent 660
Other personnel compensation 1
Total personnel compensation 661
Civilian personnel benefits 112
Travel & transportation of things 6
Other services 22
Total 801

Question. Please explain in detail the assumptions used to develop the fiscal year
2005 budget request for personnel compensation and benefits of the Board of Con-
tract Appeals.

Answer. The assumptions used to develop the Board of Contract Appeals’ budget
request for personnel compensation and benefits are computed as follows: (1) Salary
and related benefits from the previous year (fiscal year 2004) are computed based
on enacted levels; (2) The fiscal year 2004 enacted level is annualized to fund the
full year cost of the fiscal year 2004 pay raise (4.1 percent for an additional one-
fourth of a year) and to fully fund the cost of any other personnel actions that oc-
curred in fiscal year 2004; (3) The fiscal year 2005 base is inflated by the proposed
fiscal year 2005 pay raise estimated at 1.5 percent (for three-fourths of a year). No
new staff increases are proposed for fiscal year 2005.

Question. Please provide the number of staffing positions and FTE requested, in-
dicating direct and reimbursable, for the Board of Contract Appeals.

Answer. The information follows.

Positions FTE

Direct 6 6
Reimbursable 0 0

Question. Please provide a table listing current staffing for the Board of Contract
Appeals compared to levels at the end of each quarter of past 5 fiscal years.
Answer. The 5-year FTE history is as follows:

FISCAL YEAR 2001 ACTUAL
FISCAL YEAR 2002 ACTUAL
FISCAL YEAR 2003 ACTUAL
FISCAL YEAR 2004 ENACTED
FISCAL YEAR 2004 ON-BOARD
FISCAL YEAR 2005 REQUEST

1As of March 30, 2004.
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Question. Please provide details on anticipated contract expenses in the Board of
Contract Appeals.

Answer. Anticipated contract expenses in the Board of Contract Appeals consist
of:

Description of Services Amount
Court reporting services for trials $8,000
Subscriptions to publications 13,000
Other small contracts 1,000

OFFICE OF SMALL AND DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS UTILIZATION

Question. Please provide detailed justification for the fiscal year 2005 budget re-
quest for the Office of Small & Disadvantaged Business Utilization by object class.
Answer. The information follows.
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[In thousands of dollars]

Object Class Amount
Full-time permanent 1,087
Civilian personnel benefits 199
Other services 4
Supplies and materials 5
Total 1,295

Question. Please explain in detail the assumptions used to develop the fiscal year
2005 budget request for personnel compensation and benefits of the Office of Small
& Disadvantaged Business Utilization.

Answer. The assumptions used to develop the Office of Small & Disadvantaged
Business Utilization’s budget request for personnel compensation and benefits are
computed as follows: (1) Salary and related benefits from the previous year (fiscal
year 2004) are computed based on enacted levels; (2) The fiscal year 2004 enacted
level is annualized to fund the full year cost of the fiscal year 2004 pay raise (4.1
percent for an additional one-fourth of a year) and to fully fund the cost of any other
personnel actions that occurred in fiscal year 2004; (3) The fiscal year 2005 base
is inflated by the proposed fiscal year 2005 pay raise estimated at 1.5 percent (for
three-fourths of a year). No new staff increases are proposed for fiscal year 2005.

Question. Please provide the number of staffing positions and FTE requested, in-
dicating direct and reimbursable, for the Office of Small & Disadvantaged Business
Utilization.

Answer. The information follows.

Positions FTE

Direct 11 11
Reimbursable 0 0

Question. Please provide a table listing current staffing for the Office of Small &
Disadvantaged Business Utilization compared to levels at the end of each quarter
of past 5 fiscal years.

Answer. The 5-year FTE history is as follows:

FISCAL YEAR 2001 ACTUAL 9
FISCAL YEAR 2002 ACTUAL 10
FISCAL YEAR 2003 ACTUAL 10
FISCAL YEAR 2004 ENACTED 11
FISCAL YEAR 2004 ON-BOARD 19
FISCAL YEAR 2005 REQUEST 11

LAs of March 30, 2004.

Question. Please provide details on anticipated contract expenses in the Office of
Small & Disadvantaged Business Utilization.

Answer. Anticipated contract expenses in the Office of Small & Disadvantaged
Business Utilization are as follows:

Description of Services Amount

Working Capital Fund Service Agreements $3,000

OFFICE OF INTELLIGENCE AND SECURITY

Question. Please provide detailed justification for the fiscal year 2005 budget re-
quest for the Office of Intelligence and Security by object class.
Answer. The information follows.

[In thousands of dollars]

Object Class Amount
Full-time permanent 1,402
Other than full-time permanent 5
Total personnel compensation 1,407
Civilian personnel benefits 394
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[In thousands of dollars]

Object Class Amount
Travel & transportation of things 72
Other services 367
Supplies and materials 10
Equipment 10
Total 2,260

Question. Please explain in detail the assumptions used to develop the fiscal year
2005 budget request for personnel compensation and benefits of the Office of Intel-
ligence and Security.

Answer. The assumptions used to develop the Office of Intelligence and Security’s
budget request for personnel compensation and benefits are computed as follows: (1)
Salary and related benefits from the previous year (fiscal year 2004) are computed
based on enacted levels; (2) The fiscal year 2004 enacted level is annualized to fund
the full year cost of the fiscal year 2004 pay raise (4.1 percent for an additional one-
fourth of a year) and to fully fund the cost of any other personnel actions that oc-
curred in fiscal year 2004; (3) The fiscal year 2005 base is inflated by the proposed
fiscal year 2005 pay raise estimated at 1.5 percent (for three-fourths of a year). No
new staff increases are proposed for fiscal year 2005.

Question. How many officials besides the Secretary does the Office of Intelligence
and Security serve?

Answer. S—60 provides day-to-day support to the Office of the Secretary and to
the Operating Administrations by providing intelligence, security policy guidance
and information. The office assures that security issues are identified and properly
coordinated between the modes and the DHS, TSA and the HSC. The following indi-
viduals and their senior staffs are served by S—60:

—Under Secretary of Transportation for Policy

—General Counsel

—Assistant Secretary for Transportation Policy

—Assistant Secretary for Aviation and International Affairs

—Assistant Secretary for Budget and Programs

—Assistant Secretary for Administration

—Assistant Secretary for Governmental Affairs

—Assistant Secretary for Public Affairs

—Inspector General

—Federal Highway Administrator

—PFederal Railroad Administrator

—Federal Transit Administrator

—National Highway Traffic Safety Administrator

—St. Lawrence Seaway Development Corporation Administrator

—Maritime Administrator

—Research and Special Programs Administrator

—Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administrator.

Question. Please provide a list of all performance measures related to the Office
of Intelligence and Security.

Answer. Department’s Performance Goals:

—Ensure the security of people and goods and advance our national security in-

terests in support of the National Security Strategy; and

—Rapid Recovery of Transportation in all modes from intentional harm and nat-

ural disasters.

In support of these goals, S—60 provides timely intelligence briefings and products
to senior DOT officials, prepares the Secretary and Deputy Secretary for Principals
and Deputies meetings on Homeland Security, is responsible for all aspects of the
Transportation Security Policy and is the DOT liaison to the Department of Home-
land Security, as well as law enforcement and intelligence agencies.

Question. Does DOT produce intelligence or is the Department only a consumer
of intelligence?

Answer. DOT is predominately an Intelligence consumer. However, our Intel-
ligence Analysts have produced limited intelligence analytical produces directly re-
lated to transportation and hazardous materials issues. They also work with the In-
telligence Community to assure that intelligence concerning threats to transpor-
tation are identified and communicated to those in DOT with a need to know.

Question. Please provide the number of staffing positions and FTE requested, in-
dicating direct and reimbursable, for the Office of Intelligence and Security.
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Answer. The information follows.

Positions FTE

Direct 15 15
Reimbursable 0 0

Question. Please provide a table listing current staffing for the Office of Intel-
ligence and Security compared to levels at the end of each quarter of past 5 fiscal
years.

Answer. The 5-year FTE history is as follows:

FISCAL YEAR 2001 ACTUAL 11
FISCAL YEAR 2002 ACTUAL 8
FISCAL YEAR 2003 ACTUAL 7
FISCAL YEAR 2004 ENACTED 15
FISCAL YEAR 2004 ON-BOARD 11
FISCAL YEAR 2005 REQUEST 15

1As of March 30, 2004.

Question. Please provide details on anticipated contract expenses in the Office of
Intelligence and Security.

Answer. Anticipated contract expenses in the Office of Intelligence and Security
consist of:

Description of Services Amount
Security Liaison $140,000
Renovation of Secure Information Facility 200,000
Secure communication at DOT alternate COOP site 26,600

OFFICE OF THE CHIEF INFORMATION OFFICER

Question. Please provide detailed justification for the fiscal year 2005 budget re-
quest for the Office of the Chief Information Officer by object class.
Answer. The information follows.

[In thousands of dollars]

Object Class Amount

Full-time permanent 2,691
QOther than full-time permanent 146
Other personnel compensation 22

Total personnel compensation 2,859
Civilian personnel benefits 551
Travel & transportation of things 34
Other services 13,278
Supplies and materials 10
Equipment 10

Total 16,742

Question. Please explain in detail the assumptions used to develop the fiscal year
2005 budget request for personnel compensation and benefits of the Office of the
Chief Information Officer.

Answer. The assumptions used to develop the Office of the Chief Information Offi-
cer’s budget request for personnel compensation and benefits are computed as fol-
lows: (1) Salary and related benefits from the previous year (fiscal year 2004) are
computed based on enacted levels; (2) The fiscal year 2004 enacted level is
annualized to fund the full year cost of the fiscal year 2004 pay raise (4.1 percent
for an additional one-fourth of a year) and to fully fund the cost of any other per-
sonnel actions that occurred in fiscal year 2004; (3) The fiscal year 2005 base is in-
flated by the proposed fiscal year 2005 pay raise estimated at 1.5 percent (for three-
fourths of a year). No new staff increases are proposed for fiscal year 2005.

Question. Please provide the number of staffing positions and FTE requested, in-
dicating direct and reimbursable, for the Office of the Chief Information Officer.

Answer. The information follows.
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Positions FTE

Direct 25 25
Reimbursable 0 0

Question. Please provide a table listing current staffing for the Office of the Chief
Information Officer compared to levels at the end of each quarter of past 5 fiscal
years.

Answer. The 5-year FTE history is as follows:

FISCAL YEAR 2001 ACTUAL 21
FISCAL YEAR 2002 ACTUAL 22
FISCAL YEAR 2003 ACTUAL 21
FISCAL YEAR 2004 ENACTED 25
FISCAL YEAR 2004 ON-BOARD 120
FISCAL YEAR 2005 REQUEST 25

1As of March 30, 2004.

Question. Please provide details on anticipated contract expenses in the Office of
the Chief Information Officer.

Answer. Anticipated contract expenses in the Office of the Chief Information Offi-
cer consist of:

Description of Services Amount
Capital Planning Investment Control (CPIC) and Enterprise Architecture (EA) $1,900,000
Local Area Network (LAN) support for the Office of the Secretary (OST) 1,700,000
IT services and user support designed to meet the IT requirements of the DOT ......cccoeveeverercciesceieces 4,500,000
Working Capital Fund service agreements 3,300,000
E-gov Initiatives 1,500,000
Other small contracts 378,000

OFFICE OF THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR GOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS

Question. Please provide detailed justification for the fiscal year 2005 budget re-
quest for the Office of the Assistant Secretary for Governmental Affairs by object
class.

Answer. The information follows.

[In thousands of dollars]

Object Class Amount

F